
Kerrin A. Rounds

Acting Commissioner

Joseph E. Ribsam, Jr.

Director

JftN08'20 Pnl2:07 DftS

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301-3857
603-271-4451 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4451

Fax: 603-271-4729 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

January 7, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New/ Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth and
Families, to amend an existing sole source agreement with New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence, {Vendor #15510-6001), 4 South State Street, Concord NH 03301, to
continue providing a statewide domestic violence prevention program, by increasing the price limitation
by $266,702 from $5,654,460 to $5,921,162 effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval
with no change to the contract completion date of June 30, 2021. 100% General Funds.

The original agreement was approved by Governor and Executive Council on June 7, 2017
(Item #11) and subsequently amended as approved on December 6, 2017 (Item #6), and subsequently
amended as approved on October 3, 2018 (Item #12), and subsequently amended as approved on
June 19, 2019 (Item #67).

Funds to support this request are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years
2020 and 2021 with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-421010-29590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION, DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PROGRAMS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code/Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 073-500581 Grants to Non-Profits-

State

42105904 $789,255 $0 $789,255

2019 073-500581 Grants to Non-Profits-

State

42105904 $578,415 $0 $578,415

2020 073-500581 Grants to Non-Profits-

State

42105903 $594,415 $0 $594,415

2021 073-500581 Grants.to Non-Profits-
State

42105903 $594,415 $0 $594,415

Sub-Total $2,556,500 $0 $2,556,500
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05-95-42-421010-29590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DERI OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION. DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PROGRAMS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code/Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2019 073-500581 Grants to Non-Federal 42105903 $151,574 $0 $151,574

Sub-Total $151,574 $0 $151,574

05-95-42-421010-29590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

PROTECTION. DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PROGRAMS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code/Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500734 Contracts for Prog
Svc

42105905 $500,000 $0 $500,000

2019 102-500734 Contracts for Prog
Svc

42105905 $500,000 $0 $500,000

2020 102-500734 Contracts for Prog
Svc

42105905 $973,193 $83,351 $1,056,544

2021 102-500734 Contracts for Prog
Svc

42105905 $973,193 $183,351 $1,156,544

Sub-Total $2,946,386 $266,702 $3,213,088

TOTAL $5,654,460 $266,702 $5,921,162

EXPLANATION

This is sole source because the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence is the only program in the State of New Hampshire working with victims of domestic and
sexual violence and continues to be uniquely qualified to provide these services. The Coalition is
designated by the Department as the coordinator to administer the domestic violence program, as
specified in NH RSA 173-B:18.

The purpose of this request is to provide additional funding for statewide domestic violence
prevention services, as required by RSA 631:2-b. The funds provide grant money to New Hampshire
programs that provide aid and assistance to victims of domestic and sexual violence. Domestic
violence grant funds are disbursed by the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence (Coalition) to twelve (12) local organizations around the state and are used to fund such
services as: 24-hour crisis telephone lines; emergency transportation; shelters; community outreach;
education; and support services to thousands of victims of sexual and domestic violence each year.
To ensure that potential providers have competitive access to deliver these services at the local level,
the Coalition solicits proposals from local agencies and awards sub-contracts to perform these services
throughout the state.

Approximately 10,000 individuals will be served through contracted services.
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The New Hampshire Coalition has successfully performed the mandates set forth in RSA 173-
B:20 for the past several years. Additionally, hundreds of people receive emergency transportation
and thousands of individuals are provided legal and social services advocacy by the vendor. Other
services include, operating domestic violence support groups, and publishing and distributing fact
sheets, brochures, stickers and ribbons in order to promote awareness of domestic violence issues.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's ability to provide domestic violence prevention
"services may be greatly diminished.

Geographic area served; Statewide

Source of funds: 100% General Funds.

Respectfully submitted,

Kepm A. Rounds
Acting Commissioner

77ie DcpaHmenl of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Domestic Violence Prevention Program

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #4 to the Statewide Domestic Violence Prevention Program

This 4thAmendment to the STATEWIDE DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PREVENTION PROGRAM contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #4") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department
of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and NEW
HAMPSHIRE COALITION AGAINST DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE, (hereinafter referred to as
"the Contractor"), a non-profit with a place of business at One Eagle Square, Suite 300, Concord, New
Hampshire 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 7, 2017 (Item #11), as amended on December 6, 2017 (Item #06). as amended on October 3,
2018 (Item #12), and as amended on June 19. 2019, (Item #67), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as and in consideration of certain
sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to Increase the price limitation to support continued delivery of these
services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #4 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$5,921,162.

2. Exhibit 8 Amendment #3, Section 5., Sub-section 5.1 to read:

5.1 "Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1 Budget, through Exhibit B-4 Budget, Amendment #4".

3. Delete and replace Exhibit B-3 Amendment #3 Budget with Exhibit B-3 Amendment #4 Budget.

4. Delete and replace Exhibit B-4 Amendment #3 Budget with Exhibit B-4 Amendment #4 Budget.

NH Coalition Against Domestic and i ^
Sexual Violence Amendment #4 Contractor Initials

SS-2018-DCYF-05-STATE-A04 Page 1 of3 Date^2-^0'



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Domestic Violence Prevention Program

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Hurrjap Services

}

... ../

Date Name^bseph ̂  Ribsam, Jr.
Title: Director

NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

12.

Date Name: Lyn M^^hollett ^
Title: Execu(ive Director

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of//^ , County on ^ before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

A-
' Signature of Notary Public or <rtlstice of the Peace

: yf Ci.

-Name-ahd'Title of NotarVbr Justide of the Pea(

My Commission Expires:

NH Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence

Amendment #4

SS-2018-DCYF-05-STATE-A04 Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Domestic Violence Prevention Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date ' ' Name:/ /^/A^OS
Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

NH Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence

Amendment #4

SS-2018-DCYF-05-STATE-A04 Page 3 of 3



Exhibit B-3 Amendment #4 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor name New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic
and Sexual Violence

Budget Request for: SS-2018-DCYF-05-STATE (DV)

Budget Period: July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020'

Line Item IDIrect Incremental "Indirect Fixed Total . 1

1. Total Salarv/Waqes $ 84,670.00 $ 84,670.00

2. Employee Benefits $ 20,396.00 $ 20,396.00

3. Consultants $ 200.00 $ 200.00

4. Equipment: $

Rental $ -

Repair and Maintenance $ 3,850.00 $ 3.850.00

Purchase/Depreciation $ -

5. Supplies: $ -

Educational $ 4,000.00 $ 4,000.00

Lab $

Pharmacy $

Medical $ -

Office $ 2,826.00 $ 2,826.00

6. Trayel $ 500.00 $ 500.00

7. Occupancy $ 10,310.00 $ 10,310.00

8. Current Expenses $ -

Telephone $ 2,130.00 $ 2,130.00

Postaqe $ 300.00 $ 300.00

Subscriptions $ 90.00 $ 90.00

Audit and Leqal $ 1,200.00 $ 1,200.00

Insurance $ 1,100.00 $ 1,100.00

Board Expenses $
9. Software $ -

10. Marketinq/Communications $ 1,270.00 $ 1,270.00

11. Staff Education and Traininq $ 1,500.00 $ 1,500.00

12. Subcontracts/Aqreements $ 1,471,142.00 $ 1,471.142.00

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ -

Direct Assistance to DV Surviyors $ 43,225.00 $ 43,225.00

Memberships $ 410.00 $ 410.00

Orqanizational Development $ 1,840.00 $ 1,840.00

TOTAL $ 1,650.959.00 $ $ 1,650,959.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

New Mampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Exhibit 8-3 Amendment #4

Page 1 of 1

Contractor initials Mis

Date I ̂



Exhibit B-4 Amendment #4 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor name New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic

and Sexual Violence

Budget Request for: SS-2018-DCYF-05-STATE (DV)

Budget Period: July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021

Line Item •'Direct Incremental . IndlrectFlxed Total 1

1. Total Salarv/Waqes $ 89.670.00 $ 89,670.00

2. Emplovee Benefits $ 21,396.00 $ 21,396.00

3. Consultants $ 200.00 $ 200.00

4. EaulDment: $

Rental $ -

Repair and Maintenance $ 3.850.00 $ 3,850.00

Purchase/Depreciation $
5. Supplies: $ -

Educational $ 4.000.00 $ 4,000.00

Lab $

Pharmacy $

Medical $ -

Office $ 2.826.00 $ 2.826.00

6. Travel $ 500.00 $ 500.00

7. Occupancy $ 12,806.00 $ 12.806.00

8. Current Expenses $ -

Telephone $ 2,130.00 $ 2,130.00

Postage $ 300.00 $ 300.00

Subscriptions $ 90.00 $ 90.00

Audit and Legal $ 1,200.00 $ 1,200.00

Insurance $ 1.100.00 $ 1,100.00

Board Expenses $

9. Software $ -

10. Marketing/Communications $ 1.270.00 $ 1,270.00

11. Staff Education and Training $ 1.500.00 $ 1,500.00

12. Sulxjontracts/Aqreements $ 1,562.646.00 $ 1,562,646.00

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ -

Direct Assistance to DV Surviyors $ 43,225.00 $ 43,225.00

Memberships $ 410.00 $ 410.00

Organizational Development $ 1.840.00 $ 1,840.00

TOTAL $ 1,750,959.00 $ $ 1,750,959.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Exhibit B-4 Amendment #4

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials. k/r\S

Date



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Scactaiy of Stale of ibc State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE

COALITION AGAINST EXDMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered

to transact busmess in New Hampshire on April 30, 1981.1 further certify that all fees and docuinents required by the Secretary of

State's olTice have been received and is in good standing as far as this oHice is concerned.

Business ID; 63838

Certificate Number: 0004493360

la.

o ■0

4*

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 8th day of April AD. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Seaetary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1, Lindsay Nadeau, Chair of the Board of Directors, do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence.
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on November 28. 2017:
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the Executive Director

(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter Into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 3o^ day of
(Date Contract Signed)

4. Lyn M. Schollett, is the duly elected _Executive Director_
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Merrimack

re of the Elected Officer) Chair, NHCADSV

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of . 2Q^.

By Undsay, Nadeau.
(Nami^of Elected Officer of the Agency)

(NOTAR^'lM^t) / -if /

(Notary Public/Justiceistice of^he Peace)

Commissioh E.xpifes: _9-18-2024

Certificate of Vote Without Seal



AC^cf CERTIFICATE OF LIABIUTY INSURANCE 0A1E (MiuoonnryY}

04/22/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLIQES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: K the certificate holder b an AOOITTONAL INSURED, the policyfles) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provbions or bo endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, sublet to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
thb certificate docs not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsementis).

PftOOUCCR

ESS Insurance Ser>^ LLC

21 Mesdowtrook Larte

POBok742S

Gilford NH 03247.7425

CONUCT Eleanor Spinazzola

F-,. 1SK. N.F («<")
deanorspinazzoiaiScsinsurance.net

INSURERtS) AFFORDtNG COVERAGE NAIC«

MSURERA
Great Ametican Insutance Group GAIG

msured

NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Videoce. DBA: NHCADSV

PO Box 353

Concord NH 03302

mSURERB Liberty Mutual Agency Corporation

MSURERC

nSURERO

INSURER E

MSURERF

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THATTHE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWTTHSTANOING ANY REQWREUENT, TERM OR CONOmON OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WtTH RESPECT TO VWICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSl^D OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUOES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXaUSIONSAND CONDfTIONS OF SUCH POLIOES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LIB 1  TYPE OF NSURANCE POUCY NUMBER

POUCY EPF
(MMRXyrYYYI

POUCY 0(P
niHiOorvvYYi UMITS i

A

X COMMERCIALGENERALUABn/rr

C |Xl OCCUR

MACS464236-18 05/15/2019 05/15/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE
, 1.000.000

CLAIMS-MAC

UAMAGL lURkNIkiJ
PRFMISES IFs ocomneel

, 100.000

MED EXP (Anr one penwi)
, 5.000

PERSONAL A AOV tfUURY
, 1.000.000

GfNI.AfiGRECUTC UMH APPU£S PER: GENERALAGGREGATE
, 2.000,000

POLICY Q [__| LOG
CTNER;

PRODUCTS ■ COMPIOPAGG
, 2.000.000

~

s

A 1

1 AUTOHOBOJEUASSJTY |

MAC546423&-1S 05/15/2019 05/15/2020

COMBINED SINGLE UUn
lEaaedMm

S 100.000

ANYAUTO

:heouih>
rros
IN.OWNED
rrosoNLY

BOOLY INJURY (Per parson) \

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED

' AUTOS ONLY

sc
AL

BOOILY MJURY (Psr aeddsnQ I

X
NC
A(J

PROPERTY DAMAGt;
IPar seddertl

1

\

A

UMBRELLA UA8

e^ESStiAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS44A0E
UMB8234(X)7.11 OSn 5/2019 05/15/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE , 1,000,000

X AGGREGATE
, 1,000.000

OED 1 RETENTION $ ^0.000 1 t

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS UABUTY y/N
ANY PROPRJETORlBUnNEROECUTFVE rrn
OFFCERNCMSER EXCLUDED? " 1
{MandMaryhNH)
tf yw.dwoeehVid*
OESWPTlON OF OFCRATKINS bMow

N/A WC5.31S.604577.019 05/15/2019 05/15/2020

S/i PER 1 OTH.
STATUTE 1 ER

EL EACHACOOENT , 500.000

EL (XSEASE. EA EMPLOYEE
, 500.000

EL CNSCASE - POUCY UMIT
, 500.000

OESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATXWS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddUeoNRemailo SefwdUe. mty be stttehedV more space h

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NK Department of Health & Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCEUED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORO 2S (2016A)3)

C>1988-201SACOROCORPORAT1ON. All rights reserved.

The ACORO name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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NHCADSV Vision and Mission

Vision
All New Hampshire communities provide safety for every person.

Mission
The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence creates safe and just
communities through advocacy, prevention and empowerment of anyone affected by sexual
violence, domestic violence and stalking.

Note; The language below will be used in grant applications and other documents to provide
further clarification of what the Coalition does.
The statement above is the actual Mission Statement.

This mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 13 independent community-based
member programs, a Board of Directors and a central staff working together to;

•  Influence public policy on the local, state and national levels;
•  Ensure that quality services are provided to victims;
•  Promote the accountability of societal systems and communities for their responses to

sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking;
•  Prevent violence and abuse before they occur.

Approved April 2011

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence • PO Box 353 • Concord, NH 03302 • 603.224.8893

mMi



NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION AGAINST

DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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June 30,2018
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ROWLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C.

Certified public accountants
46 N. STATESTREET

CONCORD. NEW HAMPSH1RE0330I

MEMBER Telephone (603) 228-5400
AMERICANlNSTinn-EOF FaX # (603) 226-3532 MEMBER OFTHEPRIVATE

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS COMPANIF-SPRACTICESECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors •

New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic
and Sexual Violence (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of
June 30,2018 and the related statement of activities and changes In net assets, functional expenses, and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements In
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstalement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's Internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also Includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence as of June 30,2018 and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United Slates of America.



Report on Summarized Comparative Information

Wc have previously audited the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's 2017
financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in
our report dated October 18, 20)7. in our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented
herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited
financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation
to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 19, 2018,
on our consideration of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report Is soiey to describe (he scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's Internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
October 19, 2018

-2-



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Statements of Financial Position

June 30,2018 and 2017

ASSETS

2018 2017

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash, unrestricted

Cash, temporarily restricted

Grants Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

518,873

38,980

1,527,457

20,421

2,105,731

$  693,733

1,316,633

1 1,516
2,021,882

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Land

Building

Equipment

Building & Leasehold Improvements

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Total Property and Equipment, Net

52,143

267,592

1 14,179

53,455

487,369

(237,534)

249,835

52,143

267,592

102,623

25,736

448,094

(226,761)

221,333

LONG-TERM ASSETS

Security Deposit

Total Assets

6,213

$  2,361,779 $  2,243,215

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Portion of Long-Term Debt
Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Total Current Liabilities

$  6,354

1,230,380

105,157

1,341,891

6,046

1,115,289

84,503

1,205,838

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion 31,508 37,861

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted

Temporarily Restricted

Total Net Assets

949,400

38,980

988,380

999.516

999,516

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $  2,361,779 $  2,243,215

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Statements of Activities

Years Ended June 30^ 2018 and 2017

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

2018 2017

Support and Revenue:

Grant Revenue

Contributions

Donated Services

Miscellaneous income

Total Support and Revenue

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

Net Assets Released from Donor Imposed Restriction

6,349,683

233,980

129,417

23,338

6,736.418

$ 5,369,395

535,168

134,937

15,785

6,055,285

38,348

EXPENSES

Program Services

Management and General

Fundraising

Total expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Unstrlcted Net Assets

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Grant Revenue

Net Assets Released from Donor Imposed Restriction

Increase (Decrease) in Temporarily
Restricted Net Assets

6,653,578

112,249

20,707

6.786,534

(50,1 16)

38,980

38,980

5,641,959

126,767

16,477

5,785.203

308,430

(38,348)

(38,348)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

(11,136)

999,516

270,082

729,434

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $  988,380 $  999,516

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended June 30,2018

With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30,2017

Program Management & Total Total

Services General Fundraising 2018 2017

Salaries $  1,032,844 S  68,871 S 12,704 $  1,114,419 $  978,558

Payroll taxes 82.976 5,533 1,021 89,530 81,880

Health and Dental Insurance 80,585 5,374 991 86,950 85,175

Other Employee Benefits 34,375 2,292 423 37,090 29,334

Professional Services 166.027 11,071 2,042 179,140 140,158

Contract/Grant Services 4,707,965 - - 4,707,965 4,061,493

Survivor Grants 109,630 - - 109,630 19,650

Memberships 3.298 220 41 3,559 3,595

Publications 1,034 69 13 1,116 995

Advertising/Public Awareness 371 25 5 401 748

Copying 4,302 287 53 4,642 4,692

Office Supplies 44,906 2,994 552 48,452 35.072

Postage 4,328 289 53 4,670 4,534

Printing 10,726 715 , 132 11,573 6,736

Equipment & Moving 12,004 800 148 12,952 -

Maintenance & Repair 31,821 2,122 391 34,334 24,444

Rent Expense 21,872 1,458 269 23.599 300

Interest 1,904 127 23 2,054 2,352

Parking 3,794 253 47 4,094 153

Insurance 11,218 748 138 12,104 9,026

PMC Partial Reimbursement 1,205 80 15 1,300 1,300

Staff Development 16,126 1,075 198 17,399 12,335

Travel 51,707 3,448 636 55,791 69,865

Telephone 34.854 2,324 429 37,607 41,542

Utilities 8,295 553 102 8,950 6,012

Miscellaneous 1,307 87 16 1,410 8,554

AVAP Miscellaneous Expense 63,181 • - 63,181 54,423

AVAP Member Training/Education 6,376 - - 6,376 4,183

Direct Training 47.172 - • 47,172 47,160

Community Education 35,878 ■ • 35,878 29,358

Depreciation Expense 9,984 666 123 10,773 9,470

Accounting Fees 11,513 768 142 12,423 12,106

Total Expenses $  6,653,578 S  112,249 S 20,707 $  6,786,534 $  5,785^03

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30,2018 and 2017

2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets

Adjustments to Reconcile Increase in Net Assets to Net Cash

Provided by Operating Activities

Change in restricted cash

Depreciation

(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:

Grants Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

Security Deposit

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITES

$  (11,136)

(38,980)

10,773

(210,824)

(8,905)

(6,213)

115,091

20,654

(129,540)

2017

$ 270,082

38,348

9,470

(204,537)

1,036

201,039

9,554

324,992

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of Fixed Assets

NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(39,275)

(39,275)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of Long-Term Debt

NET CASH USED BY FINANCING ACTIVITES

(6,045)

(6,045)

(5,747)

(5,747)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN UNRESTRICTED CASH (174,860) 319,245

UNRESTRICTED CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 693,733 374,488

UNRESTRICTED CASH AT END OF YEAR $ 518,873 $ 693,733

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for:

Interest $  2,054 $ 2,352

Donated Services $  129,417 $  134,937

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30,2018 and 2017

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

The Coalition is a private, non-profit, tax-exempt organization committed to ending domestic and sexual
violence. The Coalition serves as a coordinating organization for its 13 member agency crisis centers that
in turn provide services to survivors of sexual assault, domestic violence, human trafficking, and stalking.
Twelve of the Coalition's member agencies are autonomous, private, non-profit organizations with their
own mission, structure, and board of directors; one is a university-based program. The Coalition receives
97% of its funding from federal and state agencies and less than 1 % from private fundraising.

The Vision of the Coalition is:

All New Hampshire communities provide safety for every person.

The Mission of the Coalition is:

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence creates safe and just communities
through advocacy, prevention and empowerment of anyone affected by sexual violence, domestic violence
and stalking.

This mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 13 independent community-based member
programs, a board of directors and a central staff working together to:

•  Influence public policy on the local, state and national levels;
•  Ensure that quality services are provided to victims;
•  Promote the accountability of societal systems and communities for their responses to sexual

violence, domestic violence and stalking;
•  Prevent violence and abuse before they occur.

To elaborate on the above mission and vision statements, the Coalition supports member agency staff with
specialized training, resources and technical assistance; convenes member agency staff to facilitate shared
learning and peer support; and collects and disseminates best practices and current information. The
Coalition supports the development of new services and serves as a statewide clearinghouse and
coordinating organization related to victim services. It administers state and federal contracts that provide
funding for its member programs.

Coalition staff provide education and training to court and law enforcement officials and attorneys, and
collaborate with legal assistance organizations that provide lawyers for survivors and their families.
Coalition staff work to promote cross-system collaboration with child protective services and child
advocacy centers to assure safety for children exposed to or who have experienced domestic and sexual
violence, and for their parents. Coalition staff participate on numerous statewide boards and commissions
to advocate for effective responses to victims.

The Coalition's Public Affairs staff work closely with other advocacy groups, legislators and survivors to
draft legislation, organize testimony, and advocate for policy changes throughout the legislative session.
TTie Coalition either lakes an active role in or tracks close to i 50 bills each legislative session. These bills
address a wide range of issues including domestic and sexual violence; stalking; family law; divorce and
child custody/visitation/support; reproductive rights; law enforcement and courts; privacy and personal
information; healthcare; and economic Justice.

Coalition staff also provide resources and sources for responsible pews media and reporting. Coalition staff
create and distribute statewide communications materials to raise awareness about sexual assault, domestic
violence, prevention and services available to victims.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domcstie and Sexual Violenee
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued^

Nature of Activities (Continued)

The Coalition plays a key leadership role in efTorts to prevent domestic and sexual violence throughout
New Hampshire. Coalition staff collaborate with stale and local entities to support policies and practices to
advance effective prevention education. Coalition staff are proactive in educating the public about the
causes and effects of domestic and sexual violence and stalking and as well as services available across the
state. The Coalition has sponsored research on the prevalence of violence in New Hampshire.

The Coalition also manages several specific programs to assist its member crisis centers and the public.
The following are three distinct programs that directly affect survivors of domestic violence, sexual
violence and stalking;

AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAR)

The AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP) founded in 1994 is a multi-agency collaboration
housed by the Coalition that ensures that direct services are available to victims of domestic and sexual
violence and stalking throughout New Hampshire. AVAP is part of AmeriCorps, a national service
program that offers opportunities to Americans who are interested in making a substantial commitment to
serve their country through national service.

Members of the AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program are placed throughout New Hampshire at member
agencies, police departments, prosecutor ofTices, the New Hampshire Department of Corrections, and child
advocacy centers to offer support and information to victims of domestic and sexual violence and stalking.
Currently, AVAP members are focusing their advocacy efforts on providing financial literacy and housing
services to survivors of domestic violence, sexual assault, and stalking. AVAP members are trained in the
AllState Foundation's Moving Ahead through Financial Management curriculum which they use in one-on-
one sessions and in financial literacy workshops focused on an array of topics from basic budgeting to
checking a credit report. Members also provide information and facilitate referrals to local financial and
housing services. Last year AVAP members provided 801 survivors with financial literacy services and
395 survivors with housing placement services.

Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) Program

A Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) is a Registered Nurse who has been specially trained to provide
comprehensive care to sexual assault survivors, who demonstrates competency in conducting
medical/forensic examinations and who has the ability to be a witness in a sexual assault prosecution.
Coalition staff are responsible for training and working with registered SANEs and medical professionals
across the state to ensure that sexual assault victims receive consistent and professional care during forensic
exams.

The Family Violence Prevention Specialist Program

Research shows a high correlation (40-60%) between the perpetration of domestic violence and the
perpetration of child abuse and neglect in the same family. The Family Violence Prevention Specialist
Program was built on the principle that abused and neglected children are best served when they can remain
in a safe household with a non-violent parent.



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30,2018 and 2017

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, fcontinuedl

The Family Violence Prevention Specialist program began in 1998 as a coordinated effort between the
Coalition and the Division for Children, Youth, and Families (DCVF). Family Violence Prevention
Specialists (FVPSs) are employed by local member agencies of the Coalition, and are co-located at local
DCVF District Offices. The FVPSs are a source of assistance and training to child protective service
workers while providing advocacy services to victims of domestic violence involved with DCVF. This
program results in more effective assistance to victims through the development of interventions that
recognize the adult victim's need for support and advocacy in order to improve safety outcomes for
children.

Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Coalition have been prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to not-for-profits. The Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting principles
for not-for-profits. The more significant of the FASB's generally accepted accounting principles applicable
to the Coalition, and the Coalition's conformity with such principles, are described below. These
disclosures are an integral part of the Coalition's financial statements.

Financial Statement Presentation

The Coalition is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to
three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently
restricted net assets. In addition, the Coalition is required to present a statement of cash flows. The
Coalition additionally maintains a classification of land, building and equipment within its unrestricted net
asset statements of activity, which is combined into total unrestricted net assets.

Grants Receivable and Promises to Give

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Coalition that is, in substance,
unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net
assets if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All other donor-
restricted contributions are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets
depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets.

Contributed Services

During the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the value of contributed services relating to printing,
community education, direct training and professional fees were $129,417 and $134,937, respectively.
Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted
support depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions.

In addition, many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Coalition;
these amounts have not been recognized in the accompanying statement of activities because the criterion
for recognition of such volunteer efTort is that services must be specialized skills, which would be
purchased if not donated.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Compensated Absences

Employees of ihe Coalition are entitled to paid vacation depending on job classification, length of services,
and other factors. The statement of financial position reflects accrued vacation earned, but unpaid as of
June 30, 2018 and 2017 in the amounts of $63,017 and $48,102, respectively.

Allocation of Expenses

The Coalition allocates expenses among program services, management and general, and fundraising based
on direct costs and other factors, including space utilization and time.

Property and Equipment

It is the Coalition's policy to capitalize property and equipment over $2,500 and all expenditures for
repairs, maintenance, renewals and betterments that prolong the useful lives of assets. Lesser amounts are
expensed. Purchased property and equipment is capitalized at cost. Donations of property and equipment
are recorded as contributions at their estimated fair value. Such donations are reported as unrestricted
contributions unless the donor has restricted Ihe donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with
explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and
equipment are reported as restricted contributions. Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those
donated assets must be maintained, the Coalition reports expiration of donor restrictions when the donated
or acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor. The Coalition reclassifles temporarily
restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets at that time. Property and equipment are depreciated using the
straight-line method. The ranges of useful lives are as follows:

Buildingand Improvements 39 Years
Equipment 3-7 Years

Depreciation expense recorded by the Coalition for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was $10,773
and $9,470, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Coalition is a not-for-profit corporation under Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code, is
exempt from federal Income taxes, and is classified as other than a private foundation. In addition, the
Coalition qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction under Section 170(b)(lXA).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, the Coalition considers all highly liquid investments (short-
term investments such as certificates of deposits and money market accounts) with an initial maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents. There were no cash equivalents as of June 30, 2018 and 2017.

Segregation of Accounts

Under Title I, New Hampshire, The State and Its Government, Chapter 15 Lobbyist Section 15:1 -a, the
Coalition is required to physically and financially separate state funds from any non-state funds that may be
used for the purposes of lobbying or attempting to influence legislation, participate in political activity, or
contribute funds to any entity engaged in these activities. The Coalition has established and maintains a
separate bank account for this purpose. The account balances were $4,634 and $2,185 at June 30, 2018 and
2017, respectively.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

NOTE B - RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of funds received by the Organization, restricted as to use or time.
The restrictions are considered to expire when payments are made. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017
respectively, the temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purpose:

2018 2017

NH Charitable Foundation % 24,282 %
Allstate 14,31 1

Verizon Respect Week 3^ ;
Total S 38.980 % ^

NOTE C - LONG-TERM NOTES

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, long-term debt consists of the following:

2018 2017

Mortgage Note, Payable to Merrimack
County Savings Bank, Interest at 4.99%,
with Monthly Payments of $675 including
Principal and Interest, Maturity date is
October 8, 2023. Secured by Real Property $ 37,862 $ 43,907
Less Current Portion 6.354 6.046
Total Long Term Debt S 31.508 % 37.861

Future scheduled maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Years ending June 30:

2019 $ 6,354

2020 6,678

2021 7,020

2022 7,377

2023 7,755
Thereafter 2.678

\
NOTE D - LINE OF CREDIT

The Coalition has a one-year $150,000 revolving line of credit agreement with Merrimack County Savings
Bank. The credit line matures on May 20, 2019 and automatically renews annually. Interest is stated at the
Wall Street Journal prime rate plus .5%, which resulted in interest rates of 5.5% and 5.25% as of June 30,
2018 and 2017, respectively.. The line of credit is secured by all business assets. There were no borrowings
against the line as of June 30, 2018 and,2017.

NOTE E - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Coalition maintains cash balances in several accounts at a local bank; These accounts are insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At June 30, 2018 and 2017 the Organization
had $ 174,712 and $339,971 uninsured cash balances, respectively. Management considers this a normal
business risk.



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

NOTE F - DESCRIPTION OF LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

The Coalition presently leases office equipment under short-term operating lease agreements.

The Coalition entered a ten-year lease agreement for office space and parking spaces on March 1,2018,
expiring in 2028. Annual rent is $74,556 with 4% annual escalations each year on the anniversary of the
lease term. Annual parking is $7,800 with no more than 2% annual increases. The future minimum lease
payments on this agreement as of June 30 arc:

2019 $ 83,350

2020 86,372
2021 89,515

2022 92,784

2023 96,183
Thereafter 497.475

Total

NOTE G - PENSION PLAN

The Coalition has a 403(b) savings plan for the benefit of its employees. The plan covers substantially all
employees after one year of service. During their budgeting process, the Board of Directors determines the
amount to be contributed annually. Employer contributions for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
totaled $21,572 and $12,553, respectively.

NOTE H - TAX EXEMPT STATUS

The Coalition is a public charity exempt from Federal income tax under Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The Coalition does not believe it has done anything during the past year that would
jeopardize its tax exempt status at either the state or Federal level. The Coalition reports its activities tO the
IRS in an annual information return. Although the Coalition is not currently the subject of a tax
examination by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS), the Coalition's tax years ended June 30, 2015 through
2017 are open to examination by the IRS under the applicable statute of limitations.

In accordance with FASB ASC 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainly in Income Taxes, the Coalition is under
the opinion that there are no unsustainable positions that have been taken in regards to federal or stale
income tax reporting requirements. Accordingly, management is not aware of any unrecognized tax benefits
or liabilities that should be recognized in the accompanying statements.

NOTE I - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In accordance with FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, the Organization is
required to disclose certain information about its financial assets and liabilities. Fair values of assets
measured on a recurring basis at June 30 were as follows:

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

2018 Fair Value (Level 2)

Grants Receivable

2017

Grants Receivable

The fair value of grants receivable are estimated at the present value of expected future cash flows.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30,2018 and 2017

NOTE J - SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 19,2018, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued to determine if any are of such significance to require disclosure.
During the fiscal year the Coalition moved its office out of its building to new leased space. On September
18,2018 the Coalition sold that building. There are carrying costs of both spaces reflected in the financial
statements.

It has been determined that no other subsequent events matching this criterion occurred during this period.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAVDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement
of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
October 19,2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial reporting" (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control docs not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that Is less severe than a
material weakness, yet Important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, wc do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Governmen! Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the" scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
October 19,2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition ,
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those
standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referTcd to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence about New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of New Hampshire Coalition Against ,
Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered New
Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, In internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
October 19, 2018
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Schedule of Findings and Question Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2018

SECTION 1 - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

1. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements of the New
Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence were prepared in accordance with GAAP.

2. No reportable conditions relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Independent
Auditor's Report. No material wetnesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence, which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are reported in the
Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No Material weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a) are reported
in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as a major programs were:

Victims of Crime Act 16.575
Family Violence Prevention Service Act 93.671

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B Programs was: $750,000.

9. The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence was determined to be a low-risk
auditee.

SECTION 11 - FINDINGS: FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

No matters were reported.

SECTION III - FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS: FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS
AUDIT

No matters were reported.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Pass-Through
Federal Entity Passed

CFDA Identifying Through to Federal

Program Title Number Number Subrccipients Expenditures

11.S. n«*nartmenl of Justice:

Direct Program - Violence Against Women Act of 2000 16.556 - 234,660

Pass-Through Programs from State of NH Department of Justice:
VAWA.SASP 16.017 20I8SASP01 327,822 327,822

VAWA.SASP 16.017 2017SASPOI 2,140 2,140

VOCA, PMC Subcontracts 16.575 20I8VOC31 1,741,750 1,741,750

VOCA, Training 16.575 2018VOC3I •
16,250

VOCA, SA 16.575 20I8VOC49 119,221 259,971

VOCA, CA 16.575 2018VOC48 -
36,032

VOCA, DV 16.575 2018VOC47 75,219 93,729

VOCA, Technology & Foundation Project 16.575 2018VOC31 -
142,000

VAWA,STOP 16.588 2018W090 - 71,925

VAWA, STOP 16.588 2017W090 -
105,912

VAWA.GTEAP 16.590 20I5GTEAP03 46,135 49,545

Total Pass-Through Programs 2,312,287 2,847.076

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 2,312,287 3,081,736

U.S. Dcpanmcnt of Health and Human Services:

Direct Program - Family Violence Prevention Services Act
Direct Program - Family Violence Prevention Services Act
Pass-Through Programs from State of N11 Department of HHS:

Sexual Violence Prevention

Family Violence Prevention Services Act

Total Pass-Through Programs
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES

Corporation for National & Community Services:

Pass-Through from VolunleerNH!

AmeriCorps Victim Assist Program

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

93.591

93.671

93.136

93.671

94.006

102-500731

155510 BOOl

325,487

868,580

182,053

72,018

454,333

888,580

1,194,067 1,342,913

1,194,067 1,596,984

226,543

$ 3,506,354 $ 4,905,263
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2018

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant
activity of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence under programs of the federal
government for the year ended June 30, 2018. The information in this Schedule is presented In accordance
with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because
the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in
net assets, or cash flows of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, Cost
Principles for Non-profit Organizations, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are
limited as to" reimbursement.

2. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

NOTE C - SUBRECIPIENTS

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence provide federal awards to
subrecipients as follows:

Program Title Federal CFDA # Amount Provided

Sexual Assault Services Program 16.017 $ 329,962

Victims of Crime Act 16.575 1,936,190

OW Grants to Encourage Arrest Policies 16.590 46,135

Sexual Violence Prevention 93.136 325,487

Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.671 868.580

NOTE D - INDIRECT COST RATE

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence has not elected to use the 10% de
minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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PAMELA ENGLISH

EMPLOYMENT

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, Concord, NH

Administrative Director, 2006 - Present

•  Continued all duties of Business and Grants Manager, including all Financial Management of the
NHCADSV.

•  Assist with grant writing.

•  Administration management including maintaining insurance coverage for organization and employees
and administering employee benefits.

•  Management of information technology systems.

•  Facilities Manager for building at 4 South Slate Street, Concord.

Business and Grants Manager, 1995 - 2006
•  Maintain all financial records, including payroll and employee benefits.

•  Manage state and federal funding programs and provide technical assistance to subcontractors.

•  Managed conversion to new computerized Fund Accounting system.

•  Hire and manage Bookkeeper and Office Coordinator.

•  Act as Facilities Manager for building at 4 South State Street, Concord.

Administrative Assistant, 1993- 1995

•  Assisted two Co-Directors and a trainer with their administrative needs.

•  Responsible for coordination and management of office.

•  Maintain accurate financial records using full charge computerized bookkeeping system.

•  Insured compliance with all state and federal reporting requirements, including 941, state UC, W-2,
1099.

Self Employed Child care provider and Nanny, Concord, NH, 1988 - 1993

Law Offices, Concord, NH, 1985 - 1988
Legal Secretary
•  Daniel D. Crean, Esq. and Charles H. Morang, Esq., Municipal and Business Law Practices
•  Robert K. Mckcel, Esq. Labor, Criminal, Worker's Comp. and General Law Practice

COMPUTER EXPERIENCE AND SKILLS

•  Fund Accounting Software
Spreadsheets
Microsoft Office Word and Excel

Outlook and Outlook Express

•  Effective supervisory management
Excellent organizational skills
Detail oriented

Ability to manage multiple, simultaneous deadlines
Working knowledge of federal and state grant compliance requirements
Working knowledge of computer management
Computerized accounting management
Experience and knowledge of New Hampshire employment law



EDUCATION

NH Technical Institute, Concord, NH

Selected Accounting and Management Courses
Merritt Davis Business College, Eugene, OR
Legal Secretarial Degree II

COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES

2002-Present Northwood Elementary School PTA, President for 2003/2005 school years
1990-2002 Dewey/Kimball School PTA
1983-1984 President, Merrimack County Legal Secretaries Association

REFERENCES

Available upon request.



Joan Madore

Experience

2001 - present NH Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence Concord, NH
Bookkeeper

• Fund accounting
• Payroll
• Federal and State tax preparation
• Accounts payable
• Accounts receivable
• Budget reports
• Grant expenditures requests
• Compile statistics
• Bank reconciliation

• Funding formula support

1984 - 1995 Kairview Nursing Home, Inc. Hudson, NH

Bookkeeper
• Weekly payroll
• Bank reconciliation

• Accounts payable
• Workman Compensation
• Health Insurance

• Telephone coverage
• Copying
• Distributing daily mail

1981 - 1984 Slawsby Insurance Company Nashua, Nil

Bookkeeper
• Accounts payable
• Accounts receivable

• Data entry

Education 1979 - 1981 New Hampshire Technical College Berlin, NH
Associates in Secretarial Science

Interests Aerobics, weight training, camping

Volunteer Volunteer at the elementary school.



Christine E. LaCourse

Experience

2012-Present W Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence Concord, NH
Office p,. operations including receplionisl duties and administrative

support to Coalition staff by maintaining calendars, plannmg/coordmating meetings, events, and
trainings, Federal Grant writing, editing and data entry . , r-

.  Liaison to the fourteen crisis centers located throughout New Hampshire, including Executive
Directors, staff, and the public

• Maintained the library and crisis center resources/pamphlets
• Assisted Community Relations Coordinator with fundraisers
•  Recruited and oversaw interns and volunteers

20JO - 2012 Manchester, NH
Administrative Assistant, The Office of Academic Affairs a k a n^^,n with
. Assisted the Vice President for Academic Affairs, Dean of Faculty, and Academic Dean with

day-to-day tasks and special projects • , j-

.  Responsible for all academic administrative functions for the five campus locations, including
on-boarding new faculty, maintaining databases and spreadsheets, and entering classes in
CampusVue course scheduling software . ^

•  Typed minutes for the Academic Affairs Managers, All Faculty, and Academic Quality
Committee meetings .. ,

•  Collected, tracked and stored all syllabi every eight weeks, along with all learning contracts
.  Handled all aspects of academic appeals (grade and dismissal), all cases of academic dishonesty
• Answered the Academic Affairs phone line, and assisted students and faculty as they entered

•  sTpMrted the Director of Accreditation and Compliance with monthly internal audits and the
recent NEASC self-study report (The college received a ten year accreditation)

• Aided Institutional Researcher with collection and maintenance of student end of term surveys

2009-2010 Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence Concord, NH
Office Coordinator . . . j j • •

.  Provided coordination of office operations including receptionist duties and administrative
support to Coalition staff by maintaining calendars, pianning/coordmating meetings, events, an
trainings. Federal Grant writing, editing and data entry , , , n

.  Liaison to the fourteen crisis centers located throughout New Hampshire, including Executive
Directors, staff, and the public

• Maintained the library and crisis center resources/pamphlets
• Assisted Community Relations Coordinator with fundraisers
•  Recruited and oversaw interns and volunteers

2007-2009 Bigctow & Co., CPA, PC Manchester, NH
Administrative Assistant , r. _ • .:,u

. Managed the President's calendar, completed projects for the President and Partner, along with
other executive assistant responsibilities



• Maintained and helped facilitate all office functions through strong multi-tasking and time
management; including answering phone, all computer databases/programs, processing mail,
tiling, sloeking, and purchasing materials

•  Interacted with and helped build relations with clients and vendors by being first line of
communication within the company

•  Processed over five hundred corporate and nine hundred individual tax returns annually,
requiring eighteen + hours a week in overtime during tax season

Education

2001-200S University ofNew Hampshire Durham, NH
Bachelor of Arts in Sociology, Minor in Psychology; Deans List, Cum Laude



Amanda Grady Sexton

Professional Experienced government affairs specialist with more than a decade of achievements
Competencies working with local, state and federal governmental entities. Results-focused with a

proven ability to engage internal and external stakeholders, Areas of strength and
knowledge Include;

Work Hislory

Public Policy and Advocacy
Media Relations

Organizational Management

Fundralsing

Written and Oral Communications
Grassroots Organizing

2006 - Present

Public Affairs Director/Lobbyist. New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence, Concord, NH

Serve as the liaison between the Coalition and all branches of Government.
Develop and implement the Coalition's local, state and federal legislative agenda.
Serve as the spokesperson for the Coalition on legislative and policy issues.
Coordinate with policymakers and stakeholders to advance the legislative agenda oft!
Coalition.

Organize and present testimony before municipal, state and federal legislative
bodies.

Participate in committee, commission and task force work.
Provide technical assistance to Coalition member programs on public policy and
legislative issues.

Promote government funding to support direct services of member programs.
Identify and apply for funding for legislative and public policy initiatives.
Provide technical assistance to member programs on public relations,
communications and media advocacy.

Train member programs and stakeholders on the legislative process and changes to
statutes and case law.

Serve on the Coalition's Leadership Team that assists the Executive Director with
overseeing the daily operations of the organization.
Supervise the Public Policy Specialist and public policy interns.

2002-2006 . 1
Public Policy Specialist/Lobbyist. New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence, Concord, NH

Monitored and responded to activities and regulations that affect victims of domestic
and sexual violence, child abuse and stalking.

Responded to public inquiries for public policy and legislative information.
Maintained connections with and represented the Coalition on public policy groups w
a focus on family law, housing and economic justice issues.
Collaborated with state and social service agencies, law enforcement, media, and
community members to garner support for legislative efforts.



Professioniil

Membership

Prepared and distributed regular legislative updates and reports.
.t

City Councilor, Concord, NH
January 2010 - Preser^t

Chair of Concord NH's Public Safety Advisory Board
January 2012-Present

Member of Concord NH's Community Development Advisory Board
January 2010 -Present
Member of Concord NH's Parks and Recreation Committee
January 2010 - Present

Member of Concord NH's Ethics Committee
January 2010 - Present

Member of Concord NH's City Manager Review Committee
January 2010-Present

Member of the Governor's Interagency Council on Homelessness, Appointed by
Governor Lynch
September 2010-Present ^

Chair of the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence s
Legislative Committee
August 2006 - Present

Mentor with the NH Grcle Program
August 2007 - August 2008
Advisory Committee of the NH Women's Lobby
January 2006 - January 2008

Board of Directors of Dress for Success NH
May 2007-April 2009
Advisory Committee of the AmerlCorps Victim Assistance Committee
September 2003 - Present .

Member of New Hampshire Task Force on Family Law. Appointed by Governor Craig
Benson

August 2002 - November 2004
Member of the New Hampshire Governor's Commission on Domestic and Sexual
Violence

August 2002 - Present

Professional

Accomplishments Drafted and advocated for the passage of a bill that extended the NH civil statute of
limitations in childhood sexual assault cases. (SB 311, Chapter 193, Law of 2008).
Drafted and advocated for the passage of a bill that created a law to criminalize the
act of human trafficking. (HB 474, Laws of 2009, Chapter 211)
Drafted and advocated for the passage of an omnibus bill that revised NH s sexual
assault and Sex Offender Registry laws to bring NH into substantial compliance with
the Federal Adam Walsh Child Protection and Safety Act. (HB 1640, Uws of 2008,
Chapter 334)

Drafted and advocated for the passage of a bill to allow the Department of Safety to
take DNAfrom all convicted felons. (HB 523, Laws of 2010, Chapter 208)
Drafted and advocated for the passage of a bill that created protections for victims
within housing laws. (SB 431, Laws of 2010, Chapter 285)
Drafted and advocated for the passage of a bill that designated the act of



strangulation as a felony level offense. (HB16J4, Laws of 2010, Chapter 8)
Drafted and advocated for the passage of HB 640-FN, a bill that created NH s Parent;
Rights and Responsibilities Act. (HB 640-FN, Laws of 2005, Chapter 273).
Drafted and advocated for the passage of a bill that supports "protective
when making good farth allegations of child abuse/neglect. (HB 1156, Laws of 2010,
Chapter 273). , -
Advocated for and secured over 1 million dollars in governmental funding for the
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexuai Vioience's member program:
Recipient of the Union Leader's "40 Under Forty Award". ^
Recipient of the Governor's Commission on Domestic and Sexuai Violence s
"William B. Palne II" Award".

Education

B.A., Women's Studies, Simmons College
Boston, Massachusetts

Honors Program

Dean's List of Scholars

M.A., Public Policy: New England College
Henniker, New Hampshire

Earned 12 credits toward M.P.P



Karin Ashton

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence - Concord, NH

Community Relations Specialist, October 2019 - current

Assist with the development and implementation of The Coalition's public communications and

fundraising initiatives. Works within a team of the Executive Director and Public Affairs Director and
other Public Affairs staff to develop and implement communication and development strategies to

broaden the impact of The Coalition and its 13 member programs.

•  ' Collaborate with the Executive Director and Public Affairs Director to create and implement

a communications plan

•  Serve as a point person for general media inquiries to The Coalition and coordinate

responses to media requests, including crisis communications

• Work with the Public Policy Specialist to expand The Coalition's grassroots network, to

produce legislative updates and action alerts, and to implement and promote public policy

initiatives and campaigns

•  Update Coalition website, generate monthly newsletters, maintain media and grassroots

contact databases. Create and distribute Coalition materials

• Manage statewide public awareness campaigns and events. Coordinate Coalition's
participation in regional and national public awareness efforts. Develop marketing

strategies, and coordinate outreach efforts to ensure consistent messaging across all

communications materials and social media platforms

•  Collaborate with the Executive Director, Public Affairs Director, and Public Affairs

Coordinator on all aspects of resource development, including strategy-building, cultivation,

gift solicitation, and stewardship

Equality Health Center • Concord, NH

Healthworker, May 2018 - October 2019

Provide patient education and support to clients seeking reproductive and transgender healthcare at

nonprofit healthcare organization.

•  Counsel patients on birth control and abortion care.

•  Set appointments, triage medical concerns and provide information and referrals.
•  Implemented new patient texting communication program and an online medical intake

system.

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence - Concord, NH

Community Relations Coordinator, 2012 - 2017

Under the direction of the Public Affairs Director and Community Relations Director helped

coo dinate communications for statewide advocacy organization.

Wrote and distributed electronic and hardcopy newsletters.

Wrote speeches and created presentations for conferences and events.

Drafted and distributed press releases to state and national media.

Monitored media coverage of NHCADSV.

Wrote, updated and uploaded content for two Coalition websites.

Managed social media and engaged with audiences.

Designed print materials, graphics and public awareness giveaways.

Helped coordinate logistics and communications for special events.



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence • Concord, NH

Office Coordinator, 2005 - 2012

•  Maintained donor and outreach database.

•  Coordinated logistics for conferences and meetings.

•  Maintained inventory of outreach materials for member agencies and public.

•  Assisted with facility management, grants processing and IT.

•  Recruited and managed college interns and community volunteers.

Equality Health Center • Concord, NH

Administrator, 2003 - 2005

•  Hired staff, maintained personnel records and provided training and supervision.

•  Responsible for compliance with state licensing and federal regulations.

•  Managed facility, security and equipment maintenance.

Clinic Coordinator, 2002 • 2003

•  Ensured the streamlined front office operations of medical facility.

•  Assisted with training and supervision of administrative staff and medical assistants.

•  Coordinated patient and practitioner scheduling.

Healthworker, 2001 - 2002

•  Provided client care, counseling and education to patients.

Millennium Pharmaceuticals Cambridge, Massachusetts

Executive Assistant, 1998 • 2000

Provided administrative support to Chief Financial Officer

•  Coordinated schedules, travel, meetings and communications for CFO.
•  Assisted Communications Department with production of annual reports.

•  Interacted with media and investors, while maintaining a high level of confidentiality.

Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire - Concord, NH

Direct Service Advocate / Volunteer Coordinator, 1995 -1997

•  Provided advocacy to victims in shelter, courts and hospitals throughout Merrimack County.

•  Managed monthly schedule for over 30 volunteers for a 24 hour crisis line.

•  Assisted with volunteer training and supervision.

EDUCATION

New England College • Hennlker, NH - B.A., Sociology, Summa Cum Laude, 1994

SKILLS

Strong writing, creative and computer skills

Microsoft Office Suite, Constant Contact, Giftworks, Canva Design, Click and Pledge, ColdFusion CMS,

Weebly, basic html

SOCIAL MEDIA

Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, Pinterest, Hootsuite

Volunteer experience

Second Start, Concord, NH ESLTutor, 2008 - 2009

RESPOND, Somerville, MA, Domestic Violence Child Advocate, 1999 - 2000

References, writing and graphics samples available upon request



Lauren Batchelder

EDUCATION

.  , y. , Manchester, NH
Saint Ansclm College, Bachelor of Arts Degree
History Major, Gender Studies Minor
Cum Laude
•  I lonors Program; Graduated In three years
•  Presenter at Saint Anselm Undergraduate Research Conference

■  News Editor Saint Anselm Crier; Rugby Team; Volunteer teacher at David School, Kentucky
•  Published in Women and Social Movements of the United States. 1600-2000

,  « Oslo. Norway
University of Oslo, Exchange Semester n^r^mher 2017
Faculty of Social Sciences, Faculty of l^w uecemoer
•  Independent research on sex trafficking in progressive countries . . . . ^ .
•  Completed legal class regarding The Convention on the Elimination ofall Forms of Discnmmation Against

Women

Pinkerlon Academy, High School Diploma
•  National Honor Society .

•  Spirit of Pnidential Volunteer Award; Given by President Obama for 500 hours of Community Service

EXPERIENCE

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence wW-^resent
iracking of relevant legislation and the coordination of materials for legislative hearings

• Maintain donor database, coordinate direct appeals and assist with fuiidraising initiatives
•  Assist with special events and awareness campaigns

January 2019- April 2019
Legislative Jnlern •
•  Tracked Legislation and attended hearings on behalf of the Coaliiion
•  Performed research tasks as needed
•  Assisted with the creation of Coalition media materials

Boston. MA
Grassroots Campatgns October 201S
Interim Canvass Director
•  Acting head of the Boston Office
• Managed office rccruiimenl and staff management
•  Named one of the top ten fundraisers in the country for Planned Parenthood and Doctors Without Borders

Manchester. NH
Saint Anselm Cner 2018
News Editor

•  Aggressively covered 2016 Presidential election on Campus
•  Investigated controversial school issues ... a
• Managed news team and collaborated with multiple advisors to create a reliable product

Washington D.C.
„ ^ t June 2016White House Gender Equality Conference .. .. r .

One of Ihe hundred chosen oul often thousand applicants tu attend the first ever White House Conference to promote
gender equality for women across the world
•  Alicnded Master Class with Warren BulTctt about economic equality
•  Invited to have an offthc record phone call with President Obama
•  Learned about sex trafficking in America during breakout ses.sions vyith White House Omcials



Contractor Name:

KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Name of Contract:

SS-2018-DCYF-05-STATE (DV)

NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

BUDGET PERIOD: . 7/01/2019- 6/30/2021. .

NAME, . ^ .

' ' ' S

UOB TITLE : . ; ' - ' SAllARY;

. HbKCbNI KAIU

'.FROM THIS
CONTRACT .

AMUUNI KAIU

FROM THIS; '

CONTRACT

Pamela English Administrative Director $77,320 14.35% . $22,194.00

Joan Madore Bookkeeper/Data Coord. $57,290 16.15% $18,500.00

Christine LaCourse Office Coordinator $43,900 21.30% '$18,700.00

Amanda Grady Sexton Public Affairs Director $81,950 13.29% .  ■ $21,784.00

Karin Ashton Community Relations Specialist $54,800 33.05% $36,228.00

Lauren Batchelder Public Affairs Coordinator $40,000 51.62% $41,294.00

TBD Part Time Data Projects Coordinator $23,000 34.00% ... $15,640.00
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceea Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) $174,340.00

Note; The percpent of salary is based upon annual salary and the amount paid from this contract is for 2 years, the percent paid from
this contract is based upon an annual percent



Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Joseph E. Rjbsxm, Jr.
Director

JfJN06'19 fthlOsOS DftS

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301-3857
603-271-4451 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4451

Fax:603-27M729 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

June 4, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Children. Youth and
Families, to exercise a renewal option and amend an existing sole source agreement with New
Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, Vendor #15510-8001, 4 South State
Street Concord NH 03301, to continue providing a statewide domestic violence prevention program,
by increasing the price limitation by $3,135,216 from $2,519,244 to $5,654,460 effective upon
Governor and Executive Council approval through June 30, 2021. 63% General Funds, 37% Other
Funds.

The original agreement was approved by Governor and Executive Council on June 7, 2017
{Item #11) and subsequently amended as approved on December 6, 2017 (Item #6), and subsequently
amended as approved on October 3, 2018 (Item #12).

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State
Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-421010-29590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS; HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION, DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PROGRAMS

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code/Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 073-500581 Grants to Non-Profits-

State

42105904 $789,255 $0 $789,255

2019 073-500581 Grants to Non-Profits-

State

42105904 $578,415 0 $578,415

2020 073-500581 Grants to Non-Profits-

State

42105903 $0 $594,415 $594,415

2021 073-500581 Grants to Non-Profits-

State

42105903 $0 $594,415 $594,415

Sub-Total $1,367,670 $1,188,830 $2,556,500
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05-95-42-421010-29590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION, DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PROGRAMS

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code/Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2019 073-500581 Grants to Non-Federal 42105903 $15L574 $0 $151,574

Sub-Total $151,574 $0 $151,574

05-95-42-421010-29590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code/Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500734 Contracts for Prog
Svc

42105905 $500,000 $0 $500,000

2019 102-500734 Contracts for Prog
Svc

42105905 $500,000 $0 $500,000

2020 102-500734 Contracts for Prog
Svc

500734 JO $973,193 $973,193

2021 102-500734 Contracts for Prog
Svc

500734 JO $973,193 $973,193

Sub-Total J1,000,000 $1,946,386 $2,946,386

Total $2,519,244 $3.135,216' $5,654,460

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source t>ecause the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence is the only program in the State of New Hampshire working with victims of domestic
and sexual violence and continues to be uniquely qualified to provide domestic violence prevention
services. The Coalition is designated by the Department as the coordinator to administer the domestic
violence program, as specified in NH RSA 173-B:18.

The purpose of this request is to provide statewide domestic violence prevention services as
required by RSA 631;2-b. These funds provide grant money to New Hampshire programs that provide
aid and assistance to victims of domestic and sexual violence. Domestic violence grant funds are
disbursed by the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (Coalition) to twelve
(12) local organizations around the state and are used to fund such services as: 24-hour crisis
telephone lines, emergency transportation, shelters, community outreach, and education and support
services to thousands of victims of sexual and domestic violence each year.

Approximately 10,000 individuals will be served through contracted services.

The original agreement included language in Exhibit C-1 that allows the Department to renew
the contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject to the continued availability of funding,
satisfactory performance of services, parties' written authorization and approval from the Governor and
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Executive Council. The Department is in agreement with renewing services for two (2) of the two (2)
years at this time.

The New Hampshire Coalition has successfully met the mandates set forth in RSA 173-B: 18
for the past several years. Additionally, hundreds of people receive emergency transportation and
thousands of individuals are provided legal and social services advocacy by the vendor.

Other services provided by the Contractor include operating domestic violence support groups,
and publishing and distributing fact sheets, brochures, stickers and ribbons In order to promote
awareness of domestic violence issues.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's ability to provide domestic violence prevention
services may be greatly diminished.

Geographic area served: Statewide

Source of funds: The special fund for domestic violence programs established by RSA 173-
B:15. 37% Other (Marriage and License Fees), 63% General Funds.

If the Other Funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested to support
the program expenditures.

Respectfully submitted.

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Deparimeni of IlealOi and llumon Services' Mission is to join coniniunities and fantUies
in providing opjMrtunilies for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Domestic Violence Prevention Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3 to the Statewide Domestic Violence Prevention Contract

This 3"* Amendment to the Statewide Domestic Violence Prevention Program contract (hereinafter
referred to as "Amendment #3") is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health
and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and the New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit
corporation with a place of business at One Eagle Square, Suite 300 Concord, New Hampshire 03301.
WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 7, 2017 (Item #11), as amended on December 6, 2017 (Item #06), as amended on October 3,
2018 (Item #12), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and In consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1 Paragraph 3,
the State may modify the scope of work, the payment schedule and the completion date of the contract
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #3 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2021

2. Form P-37, General Provisions; Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$5,654,460

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

5. Delete Exhibit B Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment in its entirety
and replace with Exhibit B Amendment #3 Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

6. Add Exhibit B-3 Amendment #3 Budget.

7. Add Exhibit B-4 Amendment #3 Budget.

NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence Amendment #3
SS-2018-DCYF-05-STATE Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Domestic Violence Prevention Program

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

b/ V/ I ■)
Date. Name^S^^h E. Ribsam, Jr.

Title;^Division for Children, Youth and Families

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence

If-4.(<)
Date NameLy^ N\,

Title:0LecvVvvl..

on

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature;

State . County cA
undersigned office?, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

/ "9 before the

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

f  I'fbd
Name and Title of NotaiV or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: JC ' ■ ^

NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence Amendment #3
S$-2018-DCYF-05-STATE Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Domestic Violence Prevention Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-

Date N^e:
Title. 44tovTvii^

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence Amendment #3
S$-2018-DCYF-05-STATE Page 3 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Domestic Violence Prevention Program

Exhibit B Amendment #3

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This agreement is funded with 61% Other Funds from Joshua's Law and Marriage
License Fees and 39% General Funds.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in
compliance with funding requirements

4. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's current
and/or future funding.

5. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

5.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures Incurred
in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line item, as spedfied in Exhibits B-1, Budget through Exhibit B-4 Amendment #4,
Budget..

5.2. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20"^) working day of each month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. ^

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department in order to Initiate payment.

5.4. The Contractor shall include with all invoices submitted:

5.4.1. Clear identification of services performed during that period.

5.4.2. A detailed account of the work performed.

5.4.3. Identification of any work and amount attributable to and performed by an
approved contractor, if applicable.

5.5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to DCYFinvoices@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division for Children. Youth and Families

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

5.6. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and only if

NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence Exhibit B Amendment #3 Contractor initials

SS-2018-DCYF-05-STATE Page 1 of 2 Dale ^ ^^
Rev. 01/08/19



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Domestic Violence Prevention Program

Exhibit B Amendment #3

sufficient funds are available.

5.7. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation
as identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

5.8. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

6. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for Department review, as
requested.

7. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the ternis and conditions of this agreement.

8. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Govemor and Executive Council.

UyyJ
NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence Exhibit B Amendment «3 Contractof Initials.

SS-201&-DCYF-05-STATE Page 2 of 2 Date

Rev. 01/08/19



Exhibit B-3 Amendment «3 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor name New Hamphire Coalition Against Domestic end
Sexudl Violence

Budget Request for: SS-2018-OCYF-OS-STATE (DV)

Budget Period: July 1. 2019 through June 30, 2020

iDlf^lncremehtal!j.7^lndlr^TIxed.£?iVmW^TDtol2^

1  Total SalarvA/Vaaes $ 74.000.00 $ 74^0.00

2. Emolovee Benefits $ 21.764.00 S 21,764.00

3. Consultants S 400.00 $ 400.00

4. Eouipment; $ -

Rental $ -

Repair and Maintenance $ 4.000.00 $ 4,000.00

Purchase/Depredation $ -

5. Supplies: $ -

Educational $ 4.000.00 $ 4.000.00

Lab $ -

Pharmacy $

Medical s -

Office $ 3.000.00 s 3,000.00

6. Travel $ 500.00 $ 500.00

7. Occupancv, $ 12.063.00 $ 12,063.00

8. Current Expenses $ -

Telephone $ 1.893.00 $ 1,893.00

Postage $ -

SubscriDtions $ -

Audit and Leqat $ 1.200.00 $ 1,200.00

Insurance $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00

Board Expenses $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00

9. Software $ -

10. Marketinq/Communications $ 1,800.00 $ 1,800.00

11. Staff Education and Traininq $ 1,500.00 $ 1.500.00

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ 1.387,488.00 $ 1.387,488.00

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ -

Direct Assistance to DV Survivors $ 52,000.00 $ 52.000.00

Memberships $ -

$

TOTAL $ 1,667.608.00 $ $ 1.667.608.00 1

indirect As A Percent of Direct

New Hampshire Coalition Aginst Domestic and Sexual Violenence
Exhibit B-3 Amendment #4 .

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials

Date.



Exhibit B-4 Amendment #3 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor name New Hamphire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence

Budget Request for. SS-ZOIS-DCYF-OS-STATE (DV)

Budget Period: July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021

lil ne: ^Dlfe^Thcremeritar^lridlroct Flx©d5;lS

1. Total Salary/Waqes $ 74.000.00 $ 74.000.00

2. Emplovee Benefits S 21.764.00 $ 21.764.00

3. Consultants $ 400.00 $ 400,00

4. Equipment; $ •

Rental $ -

Repair and Maintenance s 4.000.00 $ 4.000.00

Purchase/Depreciation $ •

5. Supplies: $ -

Educational $ 4.000.00 $ 4.000.00

Lab $ -

Pharmacy $

Medical s -

Office $ 3.000.00 $ 3,000.00

6. Travel $ 500.00 $ 500.00

7. Occupancy $ 12.063.00 $ 12.063.00

8. Current Expenses $ -

Telephone $ 1.893.00 $ 1.893.00

Postaqe $ -

Subscriptions s -

Audit and Leqal $ 1,200.00 $ 1,200.00

Insurance $ 1.000.00 $ 1.000.00

Board Expenses $ 1.000.00 $ 1.000.00

9. Software $ -

10. Marketinq/Communications $ 1.800.00 $ 1,800.00

11. Staff Education and Traininq $ 1.500.00 $ 1,500.00

12. Subcontracts/Aqreements $ 1.387.488.00 $ 1.387.488.00

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ -

Direct Assistance to DV Sunrivors $ 52.000.00 $ 52.000.00

s -

$ -

TOTAL $ 1.667.608.00 $ $ 1.667,608.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

New Hampshire Coalition Aginst Domestic and Sexual Violenence
Exhibit B-4 Amendment #4

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials

Date
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

HUMAN SERVICES AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301.3857
603-271-9546 1-80(^52-3345 EiL 9546

F«i: 603-271-4232 TDD Accew: 1-800-735-2964
wwwulbhsxb^v

September 10. 2018

His Exceitertcy. Governor Chrislopber T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

Stale House , ' . ' .
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

RPpUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Departn^ent of Health and Human Services. Division for Children, Youth
and Families to amend an existing sole source agreement with New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence. Vendor #15510-6001. 4 South State Street. Concord NH 03301. for
the provision of a statewide domestic violence prevention program, by Increasing the Price Limitation
by $651,574 from $1,867,670 to an amount not lo exceed $2,519,244 and to be effective retroactive
to July 1. 2018 upon the date of the Governor and Executive Council approval through June 30. 2019.

This original agreement was approved by Govennor and Executive Council on June 7, 2017,
Item #11 and subsequently approved on December 6. 2017. item #6.

63% General Furwls, 37% Other Funds.

Funds lo support this request are available in the following accounts for SFY 2019. with
authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and amertd the related terms of the contract
without further approval from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-42-421010-29530000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
9V9, nn

Fiscal

Year

9. nwnJMn

Class /

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code/Job

Number

Current

Modirted

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 073-500581 Grants to Non-Profits-
State

42105904 $789,255 $0 $789,255

2019 073-500581 Grants to Non-Profils-

State

42105904 $578,415 0 $576,415

Sub-Tota! $1,367,670 $0 $1,367,670
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SVS. HHS: HUMAN SE

Class/Fiscal Class Title
AccountYear

Grants tpNon-Federal073-5005812019

Activity
Code/Job
Number

42105903

Sub-Total

PQMESTtC V

Current

Modirted

Budget

$0

SO

OLENCE PROGRAMS

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

$151.574

S151.574

Revised

Modified

Budget

$151.574

S151.574

Fiscal

Year

2018

2019

Class /

Account

102-600734

Class Title

102-500734

Contracts for Prog

Svc

Contracts for Prog

Svc

Activity
Code/Job

Number

42105905

42105905

Sub-Total

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

$500,000

$0

$500.000

$0

$500,000

S500.0Q0

Revised

Modified

Budget

$500,000

$500,000

STOOO.OOO

Total $1.867.670 $651.574

PXPLANATION

VMMmmmm
This is a sole source agreement because the New Hampshire Coal'''°".f9ara'sexual J?;:ence Is the only pr^ram in the State

Gpec'ified in NH RSA 173-B.18.

=-,s;
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To ensure that potential providers have competitive access to deliver these ̂ .^ces at the
tevel, the Sn Spropisals from local agencies and awards sut«ontracts to perform these
services throughout the state.

The New Hampshire Coalition has successfully carried out the mandates set forth In
R- 19 for the oast several years. Additionally, hundreds of people receive em^gency transportati^

stokers and ribbons in order to promote awareness of domestic violence issues.
This contract contains language which allows for the opUon to renew rontract se^ices for up to

two (2) years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and
approval by the Governor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the New Ham^ire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's ability to provide domestic violence prevention
services may be greatly diminished.

Geographic area served: Statewide

Source of funds: The special fund for domestic violence programs established by RSA 173-
B:15. 37% Other (Marriage and License Fees), 63% General Funds,

If the Other Funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested to support
the program expenditures.

submully

Ch^ine '
Associate Commissioner

Approved by:^
frey A. Meyers

Commissioner

in providing opportunilics for cUiaru to achieve health and independence.



Kew Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Domestic Violence Prevention Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the

Statewide Domestic Violence Prevention Program Contract

This 2nd Amendment to the Statewide Domestic Violence Prevention Program contract (hereinafterS^red One") dated this 27th day of August, 2018 is betvveoMhe S.ate^^
New Hampshira. Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as ̂
"Deoarlment") and the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Viol^ce. (hereinafler
referred to as "the Contractor"), a rwn-profit corporation with a place of business at One Eagle Square,
Suite 300, Concord. New Hampshire 03301.

VWEREAS pursuant to an agreement (the -Contracr") approved by the Go^or and Executive C^ncii
on June 7. 2017, Item #11. and subsequently on December 6. 2017. Item
perform certain services based upon me terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums sfjeafied; and

WHEREAS, the Slate and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the payment schedules and
terms and conditions of contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18, ot the Form P-37, the State may modify
the payment schedule ot the contract by written agreement ot the parties,

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation to support continued delivery ot these
services, and

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Corltract and set forth herein, the parlies hereto agree as fotlows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read.

$2,519,244.

2 Delete Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment In its entirety and repiace with
Exhibit B Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

3. Delete Exhibit B-1 Amendment #1 Budget. In Hs entirely and replace with Exhibit B-2-
Amendment U2.

4 Delete Exhibit K, DHHS Irrtormalion Security Requirements CU/DHHS/032917 (2
entirety, and replace with Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements V4. Last update
04.04.2018 (9 pages).

NH Coalilion Ao««f»r Domestic and Sexu»l VWence Amtndmenlil

SS-20ie-DCYFe5-STATE ^ ^
JLA1S



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewld« Domestic Violence Prevention Pfogrsm

This amendmen! shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Cou^l approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

Date

State of New Hampshire
Department of Kealt an Services

Josef^TE. Ribsam, Jr.
Dir£(or - Division for Children, Youth & Families

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence

Oat?^ Name:

Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

Slate . County o\Mam^An^ on the
undersigri^ ofTic^perwnally appeared the person identified direcHy above, ors^ artonly proyen to
be the person whose rwme Is sigr»ed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public tf-Juotioo of the Poacc

I'Sk
of Nota^<Name and Title Of Juctico Qf the Ppnfip

f/ly Commission Expires: O'A. ^

NH CoaWon Agalftsl Domestic sntf Sexual vwence Amendnert ii

SS-20^8-OCYF-OS-STATE P®9e 2 « 3

uy^s



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
St«t«wlde Domestic Violence Prevention Program

The preceding Aii>endment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date I 1' V

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by me Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meetirtg)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

TiUe:

NM Cooliliofl ABJlnsl Domestic and Sexual Violence Amendmert HI

SS-JOtft-OCYF-OS-STATE PifleSoTJ

Lir)S



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Domestic Violence Preventtort Program

Exhibit B Amendment #2

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The Stale shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price
Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to ExhIbH A. Scope of
Services.

1.1. This contract Is funded with:

«  Other Funds from Joshua's Law

•  General Funds from Marriage License Fees

1.2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in
compliance with funding requirements. Failure to meet the scof)e of services may
jeopardize the funded contractor's current and/or future funding.

2. Paynrrent for services shall be made as foBows:

2.1. Paymer^t shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred In the
fulfillment of this agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line Item.

2.2. The Contractor must submit monthly invoices for reimbursement by the twentieth
working day of each month, which jdentifies and requests reimbursement for authorized
expenses incurred in the prior month. The invoice must be completed, signed, dated
and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment.

2.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are
available. Contractors will keep detailed records of their activities related to DHHS-
funded programs and services.

2.4. The final invoice shall be due to the Slate no later than forty (40) days after the contract
Form-37. Block 1.7 Completion Date.

2.5. The Contractor shall Include with all invoices submitted;

2.5.1. Clear identificalion of services performed during that period.

2.5.2. A detailed account of the work performed.

2.5.3. Identification of any work and amount attributabte to and performed by an
approved contractor, if applicable.

2.5.4. Separate identification of any expenses incurred by the Contractor that will be
considered Non-Federal Match per the funding grant requirements.

2.5.5. Provide a monthly signed cerlrficallon that the matching funds, equal to 20% of
the contract award amount, which may be In cash or in kind, are not derived
from federal sources.

NH CosOtion Agahsl DomesUc and Seiftiai Vtofenoc ExttiBil B Ame«3mcni »2 Cortractof mWals

SS-201 e-OC YF^STATt P»Q«10l2 Oata ^ -2?'/ 9C



New Hampshire Department of Heal^ ar^ Human Services
StatewWe Domestic Violence Prev'ehtlori Proflram

Exhibit B Amendment #2

2.6. In lieu of hard copies, all Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emaited
to DCYFinvoices(S>dhhs.nh.qov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator - DCYF
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

2.7. Payments may t>e withheld pending receipt of required reports or docunrventation as
Identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Senrices.

3. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P'37, changes limited to
a<fiusting amounts between budget line items, related Items, amendments of related budget
exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal
years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

NH CosCaon Agiiwl OomeaUc and Saxusi VWance EjWW B Afliendmart #2 Conlractof Wliab

SS-2018-lXY STATE Rape 2 of 2 Date



EXHIBIT B-2 AMENDMENT #2 BUDGET

New Hampshire Departnwnt of Health and Human Services

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Contractor Name: Sexual Violence

Statewide Domestic Violence Prevention Program

Budget Request for: SS-2018-DCYF-05-STATE (DV)
(Nameotf^P)

Biidaet Period: 7f01/2017 - 6/30/2019)

LineMtem' '.
(  *;''"Dlrect^: '■ Undlrectv Total:"! ̂  . AllocatlonlMethOd)for/
r Incremental • Rixedl f thdlrecl/FlxedCost

1  Total Satarv/Waoes S  99.850.00 i $  99,650.00

2. Emplovee Benefils S  27,369.00 $ $  27.369.00

3. Consuttants $  267.00 $ $  267.00

4. Eouioment: s s $

Rental $ $ $

Repair an6 Maintenarvce S  4.145.00 $ $  4,146.00

Piirnhase/Depreciatton s % 3

S. Supplies: s $ 3

Educational s  4,000.00 s 3  4.000.00

Lab $ $ 3

Pharmacy 3 s 3

Medical s % 3

Office S  4,623.00 % 3  4,623.00

6. Travel $  1,000.00 % 3  1.000.00

7. Occuoancv S  18.475.00 $ 3  18,475.00

8. Current Expenses $ $ 3

Teleohpne S  3.381.00 s $  3,381.00

Postaoe $  400.00 s $  400.00

Subscriptions S  400.00 $ 3  400.00

Audit and Leoal $  1,774.00 s $  1,774.00

Insurance s  1,404.00 s 3  1,404.00

Board Expenses ) $ 3

9. Software s s

10. Mdritetino/Communications s  2.043.00 $ 3  2.O43.0O

11. Staff Education and Traimnq %  1.750.00 $ S  1,750,00

12. Subcontracts/Aqreements S 2.238.194.00 $ 3 2.238.194.00

13. Other (Specific details mandatory): $ $ 3

13. Direct assistance to DV survivors $  109,635.00 5 $  109.635.00

13. National & State Membershios $  533.00 s 3  533.00

$ s 3

$ $

s s 3

TOTAL = $ 2,519,244.00 i  - 1$ 2,519,244.00 1

Exhibit B-2 Amendment #2 Budget 7/01M7 through 6/50/lfl

Page i of 1

Contractor tnitials:

Date: ^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The lotlowing terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in tWs document:

1. "Breach' means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information.' Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach' In section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidentiat Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal Information Including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Infomrialion.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information ovmed or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI). Personal Rnancial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. 'End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an expticil or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's Itnowledge. instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V4. Lau upW» 04.04.2018 Exrtbii K Certractor IniUab
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New Hsmpshire Depertment of Hesllh and Human Sendees
Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of wtiich may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7  "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (design^, tested. arKl
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
r\etwork ar>d not adeguately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defiried in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9  "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at45C.F.R. Parts 160 and 184. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
Slates Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that Is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable unreadatjte. or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is
developed or endorsed by a starxJards developing organization that Is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR ,

A. Business Use and Disclosure of ConfKJential Information.

1, The Contractor must not use, disctose. maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V..L«tup«i»04.04,20<. Onr_
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K ■

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that It is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or ot^t to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additlonat
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be t>ound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not Indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Corrtract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If ErwJ User Is transmittir^ DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert Knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks ar>d Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to ar>d being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User Is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If ErxJ User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

UVK
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless networic. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed. ^

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
' be coded (or 24-hCHir auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will l>e deleted every 24

hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, othenvise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection wtth the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implemenlation of
cloud computing, doud sen/ice or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidentiai information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security asvareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confrdential Data
in a secure location and identified in section iV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidentiai Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HlTECH complian! solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anfhSpam. anti-spyware, and antknalware utilities. The environment, as a

L/y\£
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detedion arwJ ftrewaD protedion.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures rts complete cooperation with the State's
Chief information Officer in the detectior> of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Olsposition

1. if the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on Its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process fw
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certificalicn for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontradors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance swilh industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for .example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitlzalion, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. 8.
Department of Commerce. The Contrador will document and certify in writing at
lime of the data destnjction. and vwll provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will indude all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all etectronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

tV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor wrill maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidenlial information throughout the Information Wecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V4. LaslupdaieM.O«.20ie ExKbUK Contfacior irdlats
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New Hampehire Department of Health and Human Services
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3. The Conlractor will maintain appropriate authentication and
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4 The Conlractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities
detect potential security events that can impact Stme of NH systems and/or
Department confrdential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6  If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engag^ent
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire the Contractor ^
program of an internal process or that defines sf^aficse^n^
expectations, and monitoring compliance to secunty requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notificaUon requirements.

7 The ConUactor will worit with the Department to sign and comply wth all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authonzalion polides
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part pf
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agr^r^nts win be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. I( the tJepartmenl determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Businew Assooate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor win worV with the Department at its Jo wm^le a Si^t^
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the
Contractor to monitor tor any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey wi l be comptet^
annualV. or an alternate lime frame at the Departments discretion with a^ee^^it by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be compteled when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Conlractor changes.

10 The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshireor apartment data offshore or outside the boundaries of the tJniled Stales unie^
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Secunty Office
leadership member within the Department.

11 Data Security Breach Liability. In the even! of any security breach Contractor shaH
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach. ^
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the brea^
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

L/y)<
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Ihe breach including but not limited to: credit monitormg services, mailing coste arid
costs associated with websrte and telephone cat! center services necessary
the breach.

12 Contractor must, comply w«h aU applicable statutes and 'eflulatio"®
Dftvacv and security of Confidential Informabon. and must in all other resp^s
^intein the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not tess
than the level and scope of requirer^nls
but not limited to. provisions of the Pnvacy Act of 1974 (5 U^.C. § M2a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulatkms (45 C.F.R. §5b). HiPAA .f
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individuaHy identrfiabte health
information and as applicatile under State law.

13 Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative technical, ar^
to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and ̂

wevenl unauthorized use or access to rt. The safeguards must provide a level ar^
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of secunty tenements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of wm
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at httpsi/AAnvw.nh.gov/doitNendor/index.htrn
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the States Pnvacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach with,n two
(2) hours of the lime that the ConUador learns of its occurrence. This iiKiudes a
confidential information breach, computer security inciderit, or susped^bre^
which affects or indudes any State of New Hampshire systems that conned to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data ^
Contrad to only those authorized End Users who need su^ I3HHS Date to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified m this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users;

a. comply vfrith such safeguards as referenced in Sec^on IV A^ above
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops arxl other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d  send emails containing Confidential Information only If. encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons aulhonzed to
receive such information.

ContTBCtoflnlliab,^^^
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential infofmation to the extent permitted by law.
f  Confidential Information received under the Contract and individually

identifiable data derived from OHHS Data, must be stored in an area ttiat is
DhYSicalty and technolofllcally secure from access by unauthorized ̂ ^ns
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

Q onlv authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, mdudmg any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required In section IV above.

h. In an other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, us^
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i  understand that their user aedentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users win keep their credential information secure^
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compUance of their Er>d Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite Inspections to monitor compliance iwrth this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Intomiaticn Sewfity Ofice
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches wtthin two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach NotificatJonpm^es and with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In a^ition ar^
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will.
1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally Identifiable information is involved in Incidenls;
3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37:
4  Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents

and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

PrKhHK Conlf»ctw IniltalsV*.U.lupd«,OH.tM.2018 OHHlTnSlion O , . O
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5 De1emiin4 wtiether Breach notification is required, and, if so Identify
Breach notificafion methods, timing, source, and contents from among
options, and t>ear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance vrith NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues.
DHHSlnfofmationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:
DHH$lnformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

0. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:
DHHSInformalionSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

OHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov

V4. Last update 04,04.201 B
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SER VICES

DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH A FAMILIES

119 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH OJ301-3857
60J.27M451 l-800-H52.3345E*l.445l

F«i: 603-271-4729 TODAccm: l-S00.73$-2964
w\vw.iJhh].nFi.EovA>cyf

October 12. 2017

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Slate House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authori2e the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Children. Youth and
Families, to enter into a retroactive, sole source amendment to an existing contract with New
Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence. Vendor #15510-6001. j S<^h State
Street Concord NH 03301, by Increasing the Price Limitation by 5710.840 from $1,156,630 to an
amount not to exceed $1,867,670 for the provision of a statewide domestic violence prevention
program, to be effective retroactive to Octobier 1. 2017 upon the date of the Governor and Executive
Council approval through June 30. 2019. This agreement was originally approved by Governor and
Executive Council on June 7, 2017, Item #11. 70% General Furids. 30% Other Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following accounts for SFY 2018 and SFY
2019, with authority to adjust encumbrances bet>ween State Rscal Years through the Budget OfHce if
needed and justified, without approval from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-42-421010-29590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION^DOft^E^CWOLENCE^ROGf^ —^.... A— p- - Va.lu.x^.. ^ r.iiiYAni 1 Increased Revised

Activity Current Increased Revised

MFiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

j" 2018 'j 073-^581
^2019 '"^07^'W^T

Grants to Non-Profits-
State

Code/Job

Number

42105^

42105904

Modified

Budget

$578,415

"W78.415

(Decreased)
Amount

r

$210,840

0Grants to Non-Profits-
State 1 X i-

T" _ S2fQ.e4p

odified

Budget

■ "$7B9.2"55"^.

557a415i

"$Y.36r670l

Fiscal ̂  Class I

05-95.42-421010.29590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIVjCHJ^LD PROT^TtONJOgMESTIC I^LENCE PiyGRAMS-- -- : CurrenI Tlncreased 1 Revised

Code/Job Modified
Number BudgetYear Account

Class Title
(Decreased) | Modified

Amount Budget

2018 102-500734 Contracts for Prog
Svc

TBO 0 $500,000

Sub-Tola/

Total $1.158,830

$500.000

$500,000

$500.000

, .iZlO.840 ' $1^867,670



His Exceltency. Governor Chrislopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

This Is a retroactive, sole source agreement. Currently, crisis centers had less than five (5)
months to spend these additional funds distributed through the Domestic Vrolence Prevention
Program, which placed a hardsNp on the crisis centers. Because the centers ®
sidrtficant factor is personnel costs, funds distributed to a crisis center with only a short tirne to spend
tt4m places the center in a difficult situation when it comes to meeting their and Personnel
needs The impact of these funds on individual survivors has been tremendous and the CoalitiOT is
eager to disburse these funds to the crisis center programs expeditiously. T^'® 9°
retroactive will allow the Coalition to gain access to the full amount of funds al otted to them by the
Legislature. This was authorized and funds appropriated by the Legislature on July 1. 2017.

This is a sole source agreement because the New Hampshire Coalition Against Dom^tic and
Sexual Violence is the only program In the State of New Hampshire working with victims of domest|C
and sexual violence and continues to be uniquely qualified to provide these services. The Coalition is
designated by ttie Department as the coordinator to administer the domestic violence program, as
specified in NH RSA 173-6:18.

Funds in this amendment will be used for the provision of statewide domestic vioier^
prevention services as required by RSA 631:2-b. These funds provide grant morjey to New H^psh^e
programs that provide aid and assistance to victims of domestic and ®®*"®'^'°'®"®®- ^ ® ,
violence grant funds are disbursed by the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic Sexu^
Violence (Coalition) to twelve (12) local organizations around the state and are used 'o
services as' 24-hour crisis telephone lines, emergency transportation, shelters, community outreach,
and education and support services to thousands of victims of sexual and domestic virMenre eacti year.
To ensure that potential providers have competitive access to deliver these
the Coalition solicits proposals from local agencies and awards sub-contracts to perform these services
throughout the state.

The New Hampshire Coalition has successfully carried out the mandates set forth in 173-
B' 18 for the past several years. Additionally, hundreds of people receive emergency transportation
and thousa^s are provided legal and social se^ices advocacy by the vendor. Other serv..^s include
operating domestic violence support groups, and pubUshing and distnbuting fact sheets, brochures,
stickers and ribbons in order to promote awareness of domestic violence issues.

This contract contains language which allows for the option to renew contract services for up to
two (2) years, subject to the continued availability of funds,.satisfactory performance of services and
approval by the Governor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's ability to provkJe domestic violence prevention
services may be greatly diminished.

' Geographic area served: Statewide



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Horwrable Council
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Source of funds: The special fund for domestic violence programs established by RSA 173-
8:15. 30% Other (Marriage and License Fees), 70% General Funds.

If the other funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested to support
the program expenditures.

Respectfully submitted.

Jo??j5h E. Ribsam/Jr.
Director

Approved by:
Jeffrey A^M^yers
CommisVfoner

Tht DtMnmenl oflMth <i»d Human Mhsion ii lo ioxn commnnHit^ ami /orni/u'v
in providing opporiur\ilifi h' c.iliztna to achieve 'leaUli and independfW. .



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hwen Dr., ConcatA NH 03301
¥tx: eOJ-ZTI'lSW TDDAc«9I;1-®00-735-2964

wwwjA.gov/ doll

Dcnb Goalet
Commlirioner

Jeffrey A. Meyen, Commisstoner
Depeitment of Heiahb lod Human Services
State of New Hunpihire
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

Dear CommlssioDer Meyers;

November 17,2017

This letter represents formal notirication that the Departmeot of Infonnation Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to enter inlo a retroactive, sole source apOTcnt with Nw
Hampshire Coalition against Domestic and Sexual Violence, as described below and referenced as Doll
No. 2018-099.

The purpose of this agreement Is to provide a statewide domestic violence prev^on
program. Ihe New Hampshire Coalition against Domestic and Sexual Vblenc^ the
only program in the State of New Hampshire working with victims of domestic and
sexual violence and continues to be uniquely qualified to provide these service. Slices
include emesgency transportation, legal and social lervices advocacy, domestw violent
support groups, and publishing and distributing fact sheets, brochures, stickers and
ribbons in order to promote awarenes of domestic violence issue.

The amendment will increase the price limitation by S7l0,840, from SI,156,830 to an
amount not to exceed $1,867,670, and will be effective retroactive to October I. 2017
upon the date of the Governor and Executive Council approval through June 30.2019.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely.

Denis Goulct

DG/mh

DoIT #2018-099
cc: Bruce Smith, TT Manager, DoIT

'Innovative Technolonles Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow'



Ngw HainpshirG Dapartmcnt of Health and Human Services
Statewide Domestic Violence Prevention Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment to the,

Statewide Domestic Violence Prevention Program Contract

This 1*" Amendment to the Statewide Domestic Violence Prevention Program conlract (hereinafter referred to as
•Amendment One') dated this 12th day of October. 2017. is by and between the^^State of New Hampshir^
Department of Hearth and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the ' State or ^
Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, (hereinafter referred to as "if^ Cwtr^or^. a non
profit corporation with a place of business at 4 South State Street, Concord. New Hampshire 03301

WHEREAS pursuant to an agreement (the XontracT) approved by the Governor and Executive Counal on Juje 7.
2017. ITEM #11. the Contractor agreed to perform certain sen/ices based upon the terms and coodilioos specified
in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the payment schedules and terms and
conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions. Paragraph 18. the State may modify the payment schedule of the
contract by written agreement of the parties;

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation to support continued delivery of these services, end

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained in the
Contract erwl set tor^ herein, the parties hereto agree as follows;

1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.6, to add Account Number: 05-95-42-421010-2959-102-500734.

2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.0, to increase Price Limitation by $710,840 from $1,156,830 to read;
$1,867,670.

3. Amend Form P-37. Block 1.9. to read E. Maria Reinemann, Esq.. Director of Contracts and Procurement.

4. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10 to read 603-271-9330.

5. Delete Exhibit B-1 In Its entirety and replace with Exhibit B-1 Amendment #1.

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

NH CoaHiofi Aeainsl Domestic onfl Sexual Violence Amendment w\ Contractor Initials;
SS-2018-OCVF.05-STATE Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Domestic Violence Prevention Program

This amendment shaU he eKective upon the date ol Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of date written oeiow,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and>fCima«^rvices

m/7/ n
'  Joseph ̂ Ibsam. Jr.

Directo^Oivision for Children, Youth & Families

CONTRACTOR NAME

//- ?-/7-
Date

Name: ~ (
Title: Ci(4Ci*Xt4 it hJlAficX^

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

signed above, and acknowledged that s^e executed this documenl in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary FuWlc cfJ^StiCe of me Peace

pd:d.»veJA r^K^lihK
Name and Title of Notary ftp'Juslice oflhe Peace

My Commission Expires:

NH Coaliilor Againn Domesilc srd Sexual Violence Amcnomerl Si

SS-20ie-OCYF-05.STATE Page 2 0< 3

Conifectof Irtilals:,

Daie:_Z/3zZ2r



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Domestic Violence Prevention Program

The Pfeceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date
Name:

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by Ihe
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (dal® meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

'or and Executive Council of trie State

Date
Name:

Title:

NH Coalition Against Domeslte and Sexual Violence Amendrriert #1

SS-20l6-DCYF-O3-STATe ''■O* ^ ^

Contractor inlUals Lm5
Dale:



EXHIBIT B-1 AMENDMENT #1 BUDGET

New Hampshire Detriment of Health and Hun^n Services

Contractor Nan>e: NHCADSV

Budget Request for Statewide Domestic Violence Prevention Program
(Namo ofRFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2018(7/1/2017-6/30/2013)
Total . . .1,;indire^.

Unejtem •. ;r ' •

1. Tolal SalafY/Wages

fn^brec^R)^Incrdfi^tii- I, ..L / .

48.500.0048.500.00
13.570.0013.570.00Emptoyee Benefits

127.00127.00Consunants

EqiMpment:

Rental 2.486.002.486,00Repair and Maintenance
Purchase/Depreciatior

5. Supplies: 2.000.00$  • 2,000,00Educational

Lab

Pt^armacy

Medical
2.645.002.645.00

Office 500.00500.00
0. Travel

12.035.00$  12,035.00
7. Occuparxy

8. Current Expenses 1.911.0C1.911.00Telephone
190.00190.00

Postage
200.00200.00Subschpt'ons
894.00894.00LegalandAudit 664.00664,00Insurance

Board Expenses

Software 1.119.001.119.00
10. Marketing/Communications 250.00250.00
11. Staff Education and Training 1.140.466 00$ 1,140,466.0012, Subcontracta/Aqreements

details mandatory)(specificOther13 61.445.0061.445.0013. ntfiKj aMiatance to DV survivors 253.00253.00
13. National & State Memberships

1.289.258.S 1.289.255.00TOTAL

Percent of
0.0%

IrectIndirect As

Exhibit B-l Amendment Budget • SPY 2018

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials:
LyyvS

Date: 1/^3^/^
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Jtffrty A. M«yeri
Conunistloncr

IHiurceo U. Rytn
Interim Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

department of health and human services

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03S01-3857
e03-271-44&l l-flOO-»62-33-»S E*l.

FAX €03-271-4729 TDD Acce«i: 1-80O-735-2964 www.dhhs.oh.gov

May 8. 2017

Qec
ujnjaoil

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children.
Families to enter into a sole source agreement with the New Hampshire CoaWion Against Do^
and Sexual Violence (Vendor #15510-6001). 4 South State Street. Conco d. 033m-^' 5?
provision of a statewide domestic violence preven5on program in an amount not to ®*=eed $1 1M 830
effective July 1. 2017 or upon Governor and Executive Council J!
June 30. 2019. 10.35% General Funds. 58.28% Other Funds, and 31.37 /. Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available In the following accounts for State Y®®^ ®
and 2019 with the authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget
Office without Governor and Executive Council approval, if needed and lustifieo.

05-95-42-421010-29590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
OF, HHS: HUIBAN SERVICES DjV, CHILD PROTECTION, DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PROGRAMS

Fiscal Year

2018

Class/Object

073-500581

Title

Grants to Non-Profits-State

Activity Code

42105904

Budget

$578,415

2019 073-500581 Grants to Non-Profrts-State 42105904 $578,415

TOTAL: $1,156,830

EXPLANATION

This is a sole source agreement because the New Hampshire Coalition Against Dornestic ai^
Sexual Violence is the only program in the State of New Hampshire wortong with vicbms of domestic
and sexual violence and continues to be uniquely qualified to prwide these service^ The C^on is
designated by the Department as the coordinator to administer the domestic violence gran program as
Specific in NH RSA 173-B:18.

The purpose of this agreement is for the provision of statewide domestic violence
services as required by RSA 631:2-b. These funds provide grant money to
that provide aid and assistance to victims of domestic and sexual
funds are disbursed by the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence to twelve



His Excellency. Governor Chrislopher T. Sununu
arrd Uie Honorable Council
Page 2 of 2

local organizations around the state and are used to fund such services as: 24'-hour crisis telephorie
lines emergency transportation, shelters, community outreach, and education and support services to
thousands of victims of sexual and domestic violence each year, To ensure that potential providers
have competitive access to deliver these services at the local level, the Coalition solicits proposals from
local agencies and awards sub-contracts to perform these services throughout the stale.

The New Hampshire Coalition has successfully carried out the mandates set forth in RSA 173-
B: 18 for the past several years. Additionally, hundreds of people receive emergency transportation
and thousands are provided legal and social services advocacy by the vendor. Other services Include
operatirtg domestic vioterxe support groups, and publishing and distributing fact sheets, brochures.
Stickers and ribbons In order to promote awareness of domestic violence issues.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services ̂ all continue
after June 30. 2017. and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services provided
after June 30." 2017. unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the
state legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 and SFY 2020-2021 biennia.

This contract contains language wtiich allows for the option to renew contract service for up to
two years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and
approval by the Governor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's ability to provide domestic violence prevention
services may be greatly diminished.

Geographic area served: Statewide

Source of funds: The special fund for domestic violence programs established by RSA 173-
8:15. 68.28% Other (Marriage and License Fees), 31.37% Federal Fuixfs from the Family Violen^
Prevention & Services Slate Grants grant (CFDA#: 93.671, FEIN: 1-026000618-B3) and 1G.35^
General Funds.

If the federal or other funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested to support
the program expenditures

Respectfully submitted.

Matjreenj/ Ryan
Interim Director

Approved by: J^(^y A. Meyers
^mmissioner

The fiepnrtnltiil of Kmhh ond Human Seniett'Mission U to Join eomnnmiltesonj (aimliti in providing opportuiuUet for
.cicirrxs lo ^crtith onti indtpendtoet.



Subjccl; Siatewide Domestic Violence Preventioii Proeram (SS_20l8-DCYF-05-STATE)
FORM NUMBER P-37 (vtMten 5/8/15)

Notice- This a£.«inent and all of iis aiiachmcnts shall become public upon submission lo
Executive Council for approval. Any informaiion that .s prtvaie. confidcniiM or propr.cta^
be cleariy ideniified to the agcrKV ar>d agreed to in writing pnor to sigmng the conlraO

agreement

The State ofNew Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAl. PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.
1

1.1 State Agency Name
Dqjartmeni of Health and Human Services

1.3 Contractor Name
KH Coalition Agaif«t Domestic and Sexual Violence

.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 03301ORS?

1.4 Contractor Address
4 South Street

Concord. NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone
Number

603-224.8R93

1.6 Account Number
O34«S-OJ)-J0O58t-42l0lO-2S.<9

1.9 ContraciingOfTicer for Slate Agency
Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq.

1.11 Contractor Signature

1.7 Completion Date

June 30.2019

1,8 Price Limitation

SI.156.830

1.10 Slate Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9246

. 12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

T713 Ackncwlcdgemeni;'State of A/Pu' A^i^ouniy of

On <JD/7- bcfor.,h«und=,sl6™dofrKcr. personally .pp"red me person idtmin.d in block^oven iotirh. pe^«r;hose name is sijr^d in bioek i .1 i. and acVnowiedged rha, s-he enecuied ih.s docomem ,n ,y capaeny
indicated ir. block 1-12. ;
I.U.l Signature <.f Notary Public or Ju.slicc of the Peace

iSeali - ^
1.13.2 Name andTitleof Notary Or Justice of the Peace

Signature1.14 SuteAg cy

1.16 vai the

"g-"' 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

!-«/. be 'ftdo/-
'H. Department of Administration

ISare: <5/tl/l1 l^^(XU/efn
Administration. Division of Personnel (ifoppUcoWc)

Director. On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

Br ̂ i/\y\ /\ /I A-rL. , ''7-V/7On;

utive Counand1.18 Approval by the Govanor

By:

Pugc 1 of 4



2. employment OF COYTRACTOWSERVICIlS TO
BE PERFORMED. The Sutc of New Harrpshire. aciing
ihrou^lhc agency identified inblocV 1.1 ('■Slate').engages
contrKtor tdenlified in block 1.3 ("Coniractor) to perform,
and the Contriclor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is ifKorporated herein by reference
(•"Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERV ICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Eaecutive Council of the Sutc of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligatiors of the parties
hercundcr, shall become cflectivc on the date the Governor
and EKccutivc Couttcil approve this Agrecmcrn as indicated in
block 1.18. unless no .such approval is required, in which case
the Agrcemcni shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is sigtred by the State Agency as shown in block
l.l4("Effcclive Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services perfonned by the Contractor prior
to ihe Effeaive Date shall be pefformcd at the sole risk of the
Coniractor. and in the event that IhLs Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Conuactor must complete all Services by the Completion Dale
specified In block 1 1.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the Suie hercundcr, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hcreundcr. arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the Slate be liaWe for any
paymcnu hercundcr in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the Stale shall have the right to withhold
payment until such fund.* become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such lefmination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event furtds in that
Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly dcbcribcd in
FJtMlUlT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Slate of the contract price .shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Cornracior for alt
expcn.scs. of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have rto liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page

5.3 The State rcsen-es the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor utxJcr this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by NJI. RSA
SO-.l through RSA 80.3-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder. exceed the Price Limitation set forth in Wock

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ ECJUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 In conneciion with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, stale, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Conttactoi,
including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxilii^
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing ar>d q>eech, can
communicate with, receive infomation from, artd convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Coniractor
shall comply with all applicable cupyright laws.
6.2 During the tenn of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, rdigion, creed, age, sex.
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Comracior shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplcmcrted by the
rcgulation.s of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the Stale of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, TCgulaiiorw and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 The CcntractOf shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all pcrsormel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, arid shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws. . . . . . u f
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, dunng the term ot
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) month.* after the
Completion Date in block 1.7. the Coniractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a Stale
employer or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this'

2of4 Contractor Initials ^-^3



Agiwmcni. This provision shall survive termination of this
Apccmcni.

7.3 The Contracting OfTicer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the evertt
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be fmal for the State.

S. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

5.1 Ai>y oncor more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall coastilutc an event of default hercundcr
("Event of Default"):
g.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hertundcr; and'or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions;
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring It to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or les.ser specification of time, thirty (3n)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
tvot timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of tcrmirtation;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
.Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of .such notice until such time a.s the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the Stale may owe to
the Contractor any damage.* the State suffers by rca.son of any
Event of Default; and'or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIAUTV/
preservation.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data' shall mean all
information and tlungs developed or obtained during the
pcifotmancc of. Or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic represeniaiions. computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, Ictlcts, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Stale or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agrecmcm, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be rciurncd to the State upon demand or upon
icrminaiion of this Agreement for any reason.
9 J Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapta9l-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agrccmctti for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contraaor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price wmed. to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, conieni, and number of copies of the Termination
Rcpon shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor Is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officefs, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Sutc or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to Its employees.

\ 1. aSSIGNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
noUcc and consent of the Stale.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all lossc.s suffered by the
State, it.s officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the fotegoing. nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the Slate, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covcf«nt in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole cxpcn.sc. obtain and
maintain in force, and .shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance;

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against al)
claims of bodily injury, death or properly damage, in amounts
of not less than $l .OOO.OOOpcr occurrence and S2.000.000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause oflosj coverage form covering an
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the propeny.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph U.l herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use In the
Stale of New Hampshire by the N.H. Depanmeni of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

3 of 4
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a cemficaiefs)
of insurance for all jrwurance rcqui red under this Agreement.
Corttracior shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, cenificate(s) of
insurance for all ret>ewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificatefs) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each ccrtificaic(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior wriiicn
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKE((S'compensation.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A
CH'orkers' Compe/isalion").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor i.s subject to the
requirements of N.I I. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain. atK) require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and mainuin, payment of Workers' Compensation ir
conf>cclion with activities which the person proposes to
urjdcrtake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
Of her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 - A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for paymetti of any Workers' Compensation
premium-sor for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable Stale of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAINTR OF BREACH. No failure by the Staie to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default .shall
be deemed a waiver of iisrighls with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce ar\y Evcrjt of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all ofthc
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
00 the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notke by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office »ddr«scd to the panics at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only aflcr approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council ofthc State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law. rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be constrtied in accordwe with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their rcspwtlve
succcs-sors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parlies to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied agair.$i or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parlies hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
cortsttued to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agrcemcru
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explalA modify, amplify or
aid in the interprciarioo, construction or meanittg of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent Jurisdiction to
be conlrtry to any state or federal bw, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agrecrncm and
understanding between the partic.x, and supa.wdcs all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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N«w Hafnpshiro D«partm«nt of HtaUh and Human Sarvicas
Statowida Domaalk: Vtolanco PravanOon Program

Exhibit A

Scone of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services

they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
dale.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to mod'ify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall
continue after June 30 . 2017. and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30.2017. unless and until an appropriation
for these services has been received from the state legislature and funds
encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 and SFY 2020-2021 biennia.

2. Scope of Services
2.1. The Contractor shall coordinate the Domestic and Sexual Violence Grant Program and

perform stated duties as outlined in RSA 173-B 18 which shall include but not limited to:
2.1.1. Servo as a clearinghouse for information relating to the prevention of and

services related to domestic and sexual violence, stalking for victims, survivors
and perpetrators;

2.1.2. Provide technical assistance for local domestic and sexual violence program
members and partners;

2.1.3. Develop and Implement domestic and sexual violence prevention awareness
training programs for the Department, as well as for criminal justice, medical,
mental health, and education personnel;

2.1.4. • Coordination of statewide and local social service agencies involved with the
prevention of domestic and sexual violence;

2.1.5. Raise put)lic awareness of domestic and sexual violence issues;
2.1.6. Publicize the availability of domestic and sexual violence prevention and

treatment programs for the public;

2.1.7. Conduct evaluations of local domestic and sexual violence prevention and
treatment programs with member agencies and partners: and

2.1.8. Provide leadership and fulfill commrtment to victims/survivors, member
programs. furxJers. partners and the communities served.

NH Coalllion against Oortiostlcarxf Sexual Vioieftce E*Nb«A Contractof initials
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Nbw Hdmpfthlre Deportment of Health and Human Services
Statewide Domestic Violence Prevention Program

Exhibit A

2.2. The Contractor shall subcontract with local sexual and domestic violence prevention
programs on a statewide basis to perform services as outlined in RSA 173-B 19 which
shall Include but not limited to:

2.2.1. Emergency ar»d long-term shelter on a twenty-four (24) hour a day. seven (7)
day a week basis

2.2.2. Twenty-four (24) hour crisis telephone lines;

2.2.3. Support groups and/or peer counseling;

2.2.4. Emergertcy transportation services to shelters;

2.2.5. Legal and social service advocacy; and

2.2.6. Coordination of services designed to mitigate and remediate the effects of
sexual and dorriestic violence for victims.

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure each subcontractor submits detailed annual reports.

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall submit statistical, finarxjial and program reports as requested by
the Department no later than August 30"" of each contract year.

3.2. The Contractor shall comply with the conridentiality provisions of RSA 170-G fl-a. All
information regarding Department clients, ckenfs families, foster families, and other
individuals Involved In a client's case is strictly conrKlential and shall not be disclosed
with anyone except the Division of Children. Youth and Families personnel in the
performance of contracted services.

NH Coalition against Oomesiic and Sexual Violence E«nibiiA CQntractor imiixh ?
55-2018-OCYr-OS-STATE Page 2 of 2



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Oomestic VIolance Prevention Program

exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This contract Is funded with funds from the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance ((^OA) "93.243.
U S Department of Health and Human Services. System of Care Expansion ImplemefHation, In
providir>9 services pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services. The contractor agrees to provide the
services in Exhibit A. Scope of Serv'ces in compliance with funding requirements.

2 The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation on Form P37, Block
1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A Scope of Services.

3. Pavmenl for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis only for actu^
Expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line item budgets shown in Exhibits B-1 and
B-2.

4. Payment for services shall be made as follows;

4 1 The Contractor must submit monthly Invoices for reimbursement by the 20"" of each fj*"
■  ■ services specified in Exhibit A. Scope of Services. The Slate shall make payment to

Contractor within thirty (30) days of rece'^il of each invoJce for Contractor services provided
pursuant to this Agreement.

4.2. The Invoices must;

4.2.1. Clearly identify the amount requested and the services performed during that period.
4.2.2. Include a detailed accourM of the work performed, and a list of deliverabtes completed

during that prior monOi, as outlined in Exhibit A, Scope of Services.
4.2.3. Separately kJenlify any work and amount of attributable and performed by an approved

conlraclor; if apf^icable.

4 2 4 Separately identify any expenses incurred by the Contractor that will be considered
Non-Federal Match per the funding grant requirements.

4 2 5 Provide a monlhly sigr^ed certification that the matching funds, equal to 20% of the
contract award amount which may be in cash or m kind, are rv^t denved from federal
sources.

4.3. Invoices and reports tdentified m Section 4.1 and 4.2 must be submitted to:
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 03301

5. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documenlalion as idenUfled in
Exhibit A.

6 A final payment roquesi shall be submitted no later than sixty (50) days after ̂  ConUact ends.
Failure to submit the Invoice, and accompanying documentation could result in nonpayment.

7. Notwithstanding anything to Ihe contrary herein, the Contractor agrees
Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with
law rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or W the said services have not been
coniplBted in accordance with the terms end conditions of this Agreement.

8  Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of Form P-37, General Provisions, an
adjustment of the amounts between budget line items and/of State Fiscal Years, relied ^
amendments of related budget exhibits, can be made by wntten agreement of both parties and do not
required additional approval of the Governor arxJ Executive Courwil.

Uoi
gKhibicO Contractor Imlials
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Exhibit B-1

—~ budgetform

New Hampshire Department of Health end Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Bidder Name: NHCADSV

Budget Request for. Statewide DomeHlc VIofeoce Prevention Progrem
(Name of RFP)

Budget Period; 7M/2017 • e/30/20lg

Ml ■■t'i
•'3;

m 4B .500.0048.500.00 5
Total Seiafv/Waqes 13.095.0013.095.00BenefitsEmotovee

. Consultants

■ Eouipmem:

Rental 250.00
250.00ir and MaintenanceRepai

Purchase/Depredati^

Supplies

Educational

Lab

Pharmecy

Medical 1.488.001,488.00
Office 500.00500.00

fl. Travel 2.490.002.490.00
7. Occuoartcv

ExpensesCunent 707.00707.00 $Telephooe
147.00147.00

Postaqe 200.00200.00Subscrtpiions 812.00
812.00

^udJ and Leoat 617.00617.00
insurance

Board Expenses

9. Software 359.00
359.0010. Maricetino/Comfnunications 250.00
250.00

11. Staff Education andTrauxng 509.000.00
509.000.00

12. SubcontfacisMoreementt
13. Other (spedfic detaBs tnandatoryi

I  578,418.00576,415.00 iTOTAL
0%

Contractors Initials
Oste

lrtdif«cl Aa A Percent of Direct



Exhibit B-2

BUDGET FORM

N«w HampshirB Dopanmonl of Hwim and Human SarvJces
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERJOO

BIdtiarNifno: NHCADSV

RMfMsi for Stitowide Dom«»tic Viotofc# Prdv«ntk>n Profiram
/Wame ofRFP)

Budoat Partod: 7;i/2016 • 6/30/2019

njKH'iptrwt iy-'
lelnn

S  46.5G0.00 S
S  46.500.00

S  13.095 00 s $  13.095,00

s s $

$ $ $

s s s

Raoaif and Maintenance i  250.00 $ f  250.00
J $ S

$ s

s s

s s

5 $ 5

s s s

S  1.466.00 s $_ 1,488.00

t  500.00 5 S  500.00

S  2.490.00 1 S  2,490.00

B Current Exnenses
s s s

t  707.00 i i  707.00

Postaoe i  147.00 s S  147.00

S  200.00 s. ^  200.00

5  612.00 $ S  612.00

S  617.00 $ S  617.00

s s

$ $ $

«  359.00 s 1  359.00

11 Education and Trainlna S  250.00 $ S  250.00

12 Sutxtomracts/AQraements f  509.000.00 $ f  509,000.00

13. Other (soecific details mandaiory); S s s

$ 5
s

t $ s

TOTAL 1  670,415.00

s

s 1 t 676,415.00 1
Ind'nct At A Pofcent of DIrvct

Cofn-acior tnitiali: ^ ,
DatelUpOiJi^f-

R(vh«dOiaZ/l3



N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

^PFCAAL PROVISIONS

Contraclore Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by ̂  ConUactor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services prided to «fgi^le
individuals arxl, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows.

1  Compliance with Federal and State Laws; It the Contractor is permitted to detwmine tlw eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made In accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, gutdermes, policies and procedures.

2 Time and Manner of Oetermlnatlon: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3 Documenlatton: In addition to the delermlnaiion forms required by the [^a^enL the Crmlractor
shaD maintain a data Tile on each recipient of services hereunder. which file ̂ all mdude a!
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department swth all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4  Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. asj^II as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that del^ma^n. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for s^s shall
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her nghl to a fair
hearing m accordance with Department regulations.

5. GratuHles or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract« ^
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of u-hfA?»f ?hir
the Slate in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may teiminalB this Contract and any sub<onlract or hw
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any ofTicials. officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6 Retroactive Payments; Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in «in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimbufM Ihe^tractor for coste
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual pnor to the Effective Date of the Control
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor ^ny ̂ erwces^wd^
prior to the dale on which the individual applies for services or (exwpl as otherWse^vided by the
federal regUalions) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such sennces.

7  Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the D®P3'^«2*
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor m excess of ̂  .
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to aswra
rale which exceeds the rale charged by the Contractor to inellghlefundersfor such service. If at any lime during the term of this ̂ o^act or after rewi^of^^^^^
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor "S®d
payments hereunder to reimburse Hems ol expense other than such cost^ J^alc;
In excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individua s
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to;
7 t. Renegotiate the rales for payment hereunder. In which event new ̂ ^®»
7.2. Deduct from any futixe payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs:

Uvis
EirtiiOit C - Spoclal Provtelonf Contractor



Nvw Hampshire Ospartmont of Health and Human Ssrvlcas
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repaymenl of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event falure to make
such rcpeymeni shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eSgibillty of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to ttw Contractor tor seivlces
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDSr.MAINTENANCE, RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: in addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evldenclr\g aixl reflecting all costs

and other expenses Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sutfidently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to indude, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions end orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, Inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records; Statistical, enrollment attendance or visit records for each rea^ni of
services during the Contract Period, vvhich records shall include an records of application and
eligibility (Inctudirtg forms required to determine digibHiiy for each such redpienl). records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. I^edical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patieni/redplenl of seivlces.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit lo the Department within 60 days after the dose of the
agency fiscal year It b recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of Stales. Local Govemmenls. and Ncn
Profit Orgartbations' and the provisions of Standards for ̂ dil of Governmental Organizations.
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliar>ce audits.
9 1 Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any o1 their
desrgr>ated representatives shall have access lo all reports and records maintained pursuaril to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9 2 Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
underwood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any slate
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made urider the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. ConrKfenllallty of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereundw or collected
in conr>ection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confiderkia! arxJ shall not
be disclosed by the Conlraclor. provided however, that pursuant to slate laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use arxl disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
pubtfc ofAcials requiring such information In connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services arxJ the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
drectly connected with the admlnistratioo of the Department or the Contractor's responsibUit«s with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on wnlien consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Eriiibil C - special Provisions Contractor InKiah
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New Hampshfre Department of Health and Human Services
Exhlfalt C

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination ot the Contract for any reason whaisoevor.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Slatistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the lollowing reports at the following
limes if requested by the Departfr>ent.
11.1. interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other Wormaiion as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the CNBpartment or deemed saiislactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within ttvrty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be In a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives staled in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of tt>e
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, ihe Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed afier the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shal include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract wriih the State
of New HampsNre. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the Slate of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

U. Prior Approval and Copyriflht Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before priniir>g. production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced. Including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guideBnes.
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contraclor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, •
state, county arvJ municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall Impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permh shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contraclor will procure said license or permii. and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contraclor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal arrd
the local Hre prolection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building ar>d zoning codes, by
laws arv) regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP); The Contractor will provide an Equal Emplo/nenl
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

ExribB C - Specltl Provisions Coniraclw iniliait .
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N«w Hampshire Oepartmopt of Haalth and Human Servicoa
Exhibit C

more employees, ii will meintein a current EEOP on file arxJ submit an E60P Cerlification Form to the
OCR. certfyif>g that its EEOP is on file. For reclpienis receiving less than S25.000. or public grantees
with'fewer than 60 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the rec^ent will
EEOP Certifxation Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or mainlain an
profit ofoanlzaUons, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certifxation foim to xtie OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http J/www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17 Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving A^ss to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficierxy. and resulting agency ouidan^ nauonal ongtn
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). Jp
compliance with the Omrxbus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of^ Ovil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whlstleblower .
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined m 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

CoNTRACiOR Employee Whistlebcower Rights and requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract wiB be subject to the whistleblovvw ̂ hts
and remedies In the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower ,
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees In writing, in the predominant language of the i^rkforce.
of emptoyeo whistleblower rî ts and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, Including this paragraph (c). in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors; DHHS recognizes that Ihe Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or ronvenience.
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the funct}oo($). Pnor to
subcontradlng. the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ablity to perform the delegated
funclion(s). This Is accomplished through a svritten agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides lor revoking the delegation or imposing if
the subcontractor's performance Is noi adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same cowactual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions. ^ ^ ^ i. ...... .u^
When the Contractor delegates a function w a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do trie Wiowng.
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the sut>conlraclor s
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontraclor's performafKC on an ongoing basis

EKhibil C - Special Provbioos Coclrsctor InHie's —
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19.4. Provide lo OHHS an annual schedule idenlifying all subconiractors. doiegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviev^

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor Iden^fies deficiencies or areas for improvement are Wenlified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the loBowtng meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and Indirect Items of expense determined by the Department to be
alloswable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: ShaM mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of oontractor agencies which have contracted with the Slate of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: H applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a descripiion of the Services to be provided to eligible
Individuals by the Contractor In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT; For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder. shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity delermirred by the Department and specified In Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc, are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed lo mean ail such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compUalion of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Adminislrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541 -A. for the purpose of impfemenling State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Corvtracl will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

e .hibit C - Special Piwiaions Conlnaor iniJial*

Page 5 of 5



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C-1

REV1SIQNS TO GENERAL PROVtSIQNS

1. Subparagraph 4 of Ihe General Provisions of this contract. Condilionai Nature of AgreemerM. is
replaced as folows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstandir>g any provision of this Agreemenl to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder. Including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availabHily of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreemenl and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or In part. In no even! shall the
Slate be liable for any payments hereurKJer in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreemenl
imme<fiately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, tennination or modification.
The Stale shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) Identified in block 1,6 of the General Provisions. Account Number, or any other
account. In the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding Ihe
foflowing language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any lime for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the Stale. 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the Stale is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement,

10 2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to. Identifying the present aryJ future rneeds of clienis
receiving services under Ihe Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs,

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the Slate and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan Irxiluding. but not limited to. any Information or
data requested by the Stale related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoir»g communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the Stale as
requested.

10 4 In the evenl that services under the Agreement, including but rrot limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitloned to having services delivered by another entity
including conlracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
unintemajled delivery of sen/ices In the Transition Plan.

10-5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall Indude the proposed communications In its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the contract for up to two (2) additional years. siAject
to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

cooHHS/- loru

EntiiWl C-t - Ravtslom to Siaodarel Piovislor* Contractor tnilials
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New Hampshire Department of HeaKh and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG»FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contraclor kJenlined in Section 1.3 of the Genecar Pfo>nsions egrces to comply with the provisions of
ScclionsSISI-SISOoflbeOrug-FreeWorkplace Actof 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V. Subtltle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representatrve. as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDMDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATKW - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations imptemenling Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
WorkplaceActof 1968 (Pub. L 100-690. THIeV, Subtitle 0: 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were emended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each gran! during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representalion of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or .violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or govamnient wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using th s form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that It will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. PubSshing a statement notifyirig employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controOed substance is prohibited In the grantee s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling. rchablUlation. and employee assislanc* programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged In the pcrtormance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee In the statcrrvent required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement: and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on v^ose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - Certificatron rsginling Drug Free ContfjcKx Initijb —
WorXptoc« Re<iuir«menl» ^ITj /i "T-
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
identiftcatlon number{s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the folbwing actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. whh respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to ar>d including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; Of

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorly in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. Slate, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faKh effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1.1.2. 1.3.1.4, 1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the 5ite(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, slate, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Conlraclor Name:

.  ̂ ——
Dale Name: . ScAt>/le.tr

ti-y: fc-.-'SVe. 0 i)re^csi<i

uyv
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N«w Hamp^hiro Dapartment of Health atid Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATIOK REGARDINQ LOBBYING

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have the Contractor's repre^ntative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES ■ CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (ir>dicate applicable program covered);
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'ChUd Support Enforcement Program urvler Title IV'D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medkaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigr^ed certifies, to the best of his or her kr>owledge 8r>d belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for Inf^encing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by speciftc mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (arKl by specrfic mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigrted shad require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that ell sub-recipients shail certify and disclose accorcKngly.

This cerTificdtion is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certTicatfon is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to fBe the required
certification shafi be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name;

Date Name: L yr^ ^ H~
Title

ExNoh E - Cerlilcatkyt Regarding Lobbying Contraclor UV1S
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New Hampshire Department of HeaKh and Human Services
Exhibit F

CPRTtFlCATtON REGARPINQ DEBARMENT SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPQNSIBiLITY MATTERS

The Conlractof identified in Section 1.3 ot the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisioos of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identifed ki Sections 1,11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foOowing
Certificdtion;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION .

t. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below win not necessarity result in ̂ nial
of partidpation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant sh^l submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certificatiDn. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective prirriary

, participanl to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disquaKfy such person from participation In
this transaction.

3. The certificalion in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prosprctive
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) Is submitted if at any lime the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has t)€come erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction.* 'debarred,' 'suspended." "ineligWe.' "lower t«r covered
transaction," "participant," "person." "prlmafy covered transaction," "principal." "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded.* as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered Into, it shall not knowingly enter into any iov^r tier covered
transaction with a person vrho is debarred, suspended, declared ineligble, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Coveted Ttansacfioris.' provided by DHHS, without modification. In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all sdicitalions for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A partiapant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participanl in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless It knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibitity of Its principals. Each
participanl may. but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall t>e construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

ExhIW F - Certiftcjllon RegifUirvg Det>#rmen1. Suspension Contficlor injiUh
And Otner ResponsiMXy Matters
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New Hampshire Deparlment of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

informaiioo of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a pruderrt
person In the ordinary course of busir>ess dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized urvJer paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction Knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred. ir>eliQible. or volunlarity excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that It and its

piincipals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

volunlarfty excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commissioo of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtairvng. attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes Of commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destrudion of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen properly;

11.3. are not presently indicted for othorvrise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certificalion: and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more publrc
transactions (Federal. Stale or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitfir^g this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective tower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that It and Its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
■fficlude this clause entitled •Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibifily. and
Vc^untary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions." without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Dale Name: S> cko
-hKe..

Title:

CxhiDM F - Cenificttion Regarding Oetwiment. Suipenekin Comraclor Initials
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N9w Hampshirg Dopartment of Health and Human Sorvicos
exhibit G

CERTIRCATION OF COMPUANCE WITH REQUrREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASEO ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
represeniative as idenlKied In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera! Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include;

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohtohs
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminaling. either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or beneHts. on the basts of race, color, religion, rrational origin, artd sex. Ttte Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C, Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in empioymer^t practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national ortgin, and sex. The Act ir^dudes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basts of race, color, or national origin in any program or acliv4y);

• the Rehabilitalion Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipient of Federal financial
assbtance from dbcriminating on the basis of disabifiiy, in regard to employmenl and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity:

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employmenl, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683.1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S C. Sections 6106-07), which prohitxts dbcriminaton on the
basb of age in programs or aclivities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

• 28 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Department of Justtce Regulations -OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fur>damental principles and policy-m^ing
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

t

■ 28 C.F.R. pt, 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); ar>d Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal .Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2. 2013) Ihe Pilot Program for
Enharfcement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below b a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certincation qr violation of the certificaiion ishali be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarmenl.

G  i
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or Stale court or Federal or Stale administrative agency makes a finding of
discriminallon after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the friding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applcable cohtracling agericy or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsmar\.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1,11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certiricat'cn:

I. By sigr\ing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with ine provisions
Indicated above.

Conlraclof Name:

Date Name: s

EkKM g
Contractor Initiab
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New Hampshire Department of Heahh and Human Services
Exhibit H

CgRTIFICATtQN REGARDiNQ ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also Known as the Pro-Chadreh Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children urvjerthe age of 18, if (he services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or locai governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law d<^ not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medtcald fur>ds. and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisionsi of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day artd/or the im^sitlon of en ̂mlnistrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor idenWIed in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of Ihe Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
ce'tification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicabte provisions of Pi.4>lic Law 103-227. Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name;

I

^  / 9-
ate Name: L y,

6zniDil H - Centrica(to<n Ragarding Contractor initials.
Environmtnial Teoacco SmoXc At> tl^
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services

Exhibit!

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLtTY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
v^h the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Inforrr^ation, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreemerrt and "Covered
Entrty" shall mean the Stale of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Dcftnltlona.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Reguiations.

(j. 'Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aaareoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164,501.

f. "Health Care Ooeraltons" shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act' means the Heatth Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXlil. Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160.162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Indlviduar shall have the same meanir»g as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative In accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Prh/acv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. ^

3/2014 ExhWI CpntfactoflnitiAU ^
Hcdlih lrt)urance PonabibtvAci *
Bu$ine«Asioeiit«Aofeemcni A In. It'%
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I. "Reouired bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by taw' in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - AJI terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164. as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Dlsclosufe of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Infonnation (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees arid agents, shall not use. disclose, mainlain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b; Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (li) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, In accordance vyith the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI In response to a
request for disclosure on the basis.that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

0. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additior\al restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of ttie Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall Immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall Include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identlfication;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made:

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

0. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHt under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/20U EKhibrtl ContfjciofIntlialt
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement (or the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

I. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at Its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Assodale shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Desigr\ated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request tor an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Ks oUigations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Secfon 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However. If forwarding the
individuars request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individuars request as required by such Jaw and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement Business Associate shali continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction Infeaslble, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity. In its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that ttie PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entltv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limltatlon(s) In Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any char>ges In, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of Ihe standard terms and corKlitions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination rwr cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. [>efinitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not othenwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Intefpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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-.e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
' person(s) or circumstance is held Invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or

conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense ar»d indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P*37), shall sun/ive termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit f.

Department of Health and Human Services

The State

Sign e of thorized Representative

lame of Authorized R^preserName of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date ' * ' ^

Name of the'Contractor ^

Signature of Authqfized Representative

/.yi^ M.
Narrfe of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

V- o > ?-
Date

3.^2014 E'hibill
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Business Associate AgreemenI

P«ge6er6

Contractor Initials

Date,



N«w Hampshirv Dopartmant of Haalth and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPAREMCY
ACT IFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding AccountabiBty and Transparency Act <FFATA) requires prime awardeesof individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded oner efler October 1. 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modificdtions resul in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reportir»g requirements, as of Ihe date of the award.
In accordance wKh 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information}, the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency'
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of Ihe funding action
7. Location of the entity
6. Principle place of performance
S. Unique Identjfier of the entity (DUNS U)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross reverxjes are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $2SM annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC."

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisior>$ of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Ad. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
arxJ 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as idenlified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certirication:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services arxl to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
FinarKial AccourilaWity and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name;

Title:

Name: /A.

EthiM J - Cerliftctlton Regiroing ihe Federal FundioQ Contractor InitKli
AccounteWily And Tramparertcy Act (FFATA) Compl'areeAccounteMUy And Tramparertcy Act (FFATA) Complarce j i
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forma

As the Ccnl/actor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, i certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: Cp 0

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-yanls, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, arvJ/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to above Is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the fcflowirtg;

3. Does the public have access to Information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a} or lS(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 <15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal ReverKje Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The narrres and compensation of the five most highly compensated ofTicers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CtH>inS'iio;n
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DHHS INFORMATtON SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

Confidential Informa^on. in addifion lo Paragraph #9 of the General Provisions (P-37) for the purpose of this
RFP, the Department's Confidential information includes any and all information owned or managed by the
State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and Human Services (OHHS)
or accessed in the course of performirtg contracted setv'ces - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and
disposition is governed by state or federal law or regulation. This Information includes, but is r\ot limited to
Personal Heahh jnlormation (PHI). Personally Identifiable Information (PH). Federal Tax Information (FTl),
Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card industry (PCI), arrd or other sensitive and confidential
Information.

2. The vendor win maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidonliai infonnation collected,
processed, managed, arxJ/or stored In the delivery of contracted services. Minimum expectations include:

2.1. Maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confideniial information throughout the
information bfecyde. where appllcabie, (from creation, transformation, use, storage and secure
destruction) regardless of the media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).

2.2. Maintain appropriate authentication and access controls lo contractor systems that collect, transmit, or
store Department confiderttial inforrhation where applicable.

2.3. Encrypt, at a minimum, any Department confidentisl data staed on portable media, e.g., laptops. USB
drives, as well as when transmitted over public networks like the Internet using current Industry
standards and best practices for strong encryption.

2.A. Ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect potential security events that can
impact State of NH systems and/or Department confidential Informellon for contractor provided systems.

2.5. Provide security awareness and education for its employees, contractors and sub-contractors in support
of protecting Department confidential Information

2.6. Maintain a documented breach rtolification and incident response process. The vendor will contact the
Department within twenty-four 24 hours to the Department s contract manager, and additionai email
addresses provided in this section, of a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that correct to the
Slate of New Hampshire network.

2.6.1 .'Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of TWe 45, Code of
Federal Regulations. 'Computer Security Inodenf shall have the same meaning 'Computer
Security IrKiderxt" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Handbng Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Depariment of Commerce.

Breach nodficalions wlU be sent to the following email addresses:

2.5.1.1. DHHSChleflnfofTnationOfficer@dhhs.nh.aov

2.6.1.2. DHHSInfonmalionSecut1tvOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

2.7. If the vendor will maintain any Confideniial Information on its systems (or its sub-contractor systems), the
vendor will maintain a documented process for securely disposing of such data upon request or contract
IcrTnination; arrd will obtain written ccrtilication for any Slate of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
vendor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery operations.
When r>o longer in use. electronic media containing State of New Hampshire data shall be rendered
unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in accordarrce with industry-accepted standards for secure

EkNbil K - DHHS Informalion Security Requirements CorUrBctor Iniitals
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deletion, or otiiervnse physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing). The vendor wifl
document and certify in writing at lime of Ihe data destruction, and will provide written certification to the
Department upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data
has been properly destroyed end validated. Where applicable, regulatory and professional standards for
retention requiremerrfs will be joinlly evaluated by the Stale and vendor prior to destruction.

2.8. If the vervlor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the ertgagemeni supporting the services lor
Stale of New Hampshire, the vendor will maintain a program of an Internal process or processes that
defines specific security expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a
minimum match those for the vendor, induding breach notification requirements.

3. The vendor will svork with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable State of New Hampshire and
Department system access and authorization policies and procedures, systems access forms, and computer
use agreements as part of (Ataining and maintaining access to any Department syslem(s). Agreements will
be completed and signed by the vendor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access being
authorized.

4. If the Department determsies the vendor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 CFR 160.103, the veridor will
' work with the Department to sign and execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement (BAA) with the
Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the agreement.

5. The vendor will work with the Department at its request to complete a survey. The purpose of the survey is to
enable the Department and vendor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the vendor engagement. The sun/ey wifl be completed annually, or an alternate time
frame at the Departments discretiori with agreement by the vendor, or the Department may request the
survey be completed when the scope of the engagement between the Oepartment and the verwJor changes.
The vendor will not store, knowirtgly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampsh^ or Oeparlmenl data
offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior express written consent is obtairred from
the appropriate authorized data owner or leadership member within (he Department.
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